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Dear Fellow Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of Moiselle
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to
present the results of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2010.

RESULTS

The Group recorded a turnover of approximately HK$440
million and profit attributable to the shareholders of
approximately HK$54 million for the year ended 31 March
2010. Gross margin increased to 80.5 percent, compared to 76.3
percent in last year. Moreover, operating margin significantly

increased to 13.2 percent, compared to 6.6 percent in last year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group continued to explore the fashion accessories market
by operating retail outlets for accessories brands COCCINELLE
and SEQUOIA in Hong Kong during the year. The Group had
formed jointly controlled entity with the SEQUOIA brand owner
to operate the first retail outlet of the brand in Hong Kong. Other
than accessories market, the Group also continued to cultivate
the markets for REISS brand both in Hong Kong and the
mainland China. The management had focused at broadening
the customer base of these European brands when they

penetrated into the greater China market.

During the fiscal year of 2010, the Group had increase the
number of stores in Shanghai, China. By continuing to
restructure the sales network in China, the Group aimed at
extending its sales network in the mainland China market and
utilizing the most effective and efficient channels to serve its
target customers. The sales network in Taiwan and Macau was
expanded and brand image of MOISELLE were enhanced in these

markets during the year.
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To increase brand equity and explore new markets of both house
brands and European brands had been the primary business
strategy of the Group. The Group had managed to improve
efficiency of resources throughout the manufacturing and
operating processes. Increased resources had been allocated to

design and development as well as retail operations functions.

OUTLOOK

The Group will continue to formulate focused strategies to
increase its competitive edge and improve the market potential
of its products. Refreshed images and new styling for MOISELLE
brand products will be launched and target at both existing and
potential customers. The Group also continues to raise the
customer service standards so that customers can enjoy the

valuable shopping experience in the Group’s retail outlets.

The first Singapore store of MOISELLE was opened in Marina Bay
Sands Shoppes after the year end. It represented the first move
outside the greater China market by the Group. In addition, the
Group has opened the first COCCINELLE store in the mainland
China in the MIXC shopping mall, Hangzhou which is the new
flagship store of the Group’s brands in China after the year end.
In the coming year, the Group will continue to open more stores
for European brands and cooperate with respective principals to

improve product mix and to expand the customer base.

The Group will also take the growth in economy in mainland
China as future focus in business development. Despite the
economic fluctuations in the short term, the long term
development of the China economy is considered contributory
to positive returns to the Group’s brand investments. The Group
is going to expand its sales network in more cities so as to

achieve increased market penetration in the country.

The Group will continue to enhance the brand equity under the
multiple brand strategy. In addition, the Group will keep on
refining the brand images of each brand under the Group. The
Group will also allocate resources in developing overseas

markets in order to gain more potential customers in future.

MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE
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R APPRECIATION

RANBRRESSHTERRREBEH B2 On behalf of the Board, | take this opportunity to thank all our
BREIZEIRAFEEFEZEMEH & shareholders and our fellow business partners, our management
EEN RRALEBZEEEFNAFERE and staff for their hard work and dedication to the Group, and
2 e most importantly our prestigious customers for their support

during the year.

TE Chan Yum Kit
BREAR Chairman
58 ZFE-ZFLtATHhH Hong Kong, 19 July 2010
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

During the year under review, the Group maintained 3 (2009: 3)
retail outlets of REISS, a UK high street fashion brand and 2
(2009: 1) retail outlets of European brands COCCINELLE, an
Italian fashion accessories brand. The new retail outlet of
SEQUOIA, a French accessories brand, was opened at the K11
shopping mall during the year which was operated by the jointly
controlled entity of the Group. By establishing retail outlets in
the shopping districts with high pedestrian flows, in addition to
strategically launched marketing campaigns, the Group
successfully expanded the brand mix and increased the brand
equity of the brands under the Group. The broadened customer
base also contributed to the increase in the brand awareness of
both the house brands and the European brands operated by the
Group.

During the year under review, the Group maintained the REISS
store in the mainland China in Sanlitun, Beijing. Besides, it
maintained its sales network in the mainland China under the
three house brands, MOISELLE, mademoiselle and imaroon, of
the Group. There were 60 MOISELLE stores (2009: 61) operating
in the mainland China as at 31 March 2010. 41 (2009: 43) out
of the 60 (2009: 61) stores were operated as consignment stores
and 13 (2009: 11) were retail shops. The remaining ones were
operated by franchisees. The sales network of the brands
mademoiselle and imaroon was adjusted in the mainland China
region during the year. There were 12 (2009: 15) mademoiselle
stores and 6 (2009: 10) imaroon stores operating as at 31 March
2010. The continued adjustment in sales network aimed at
capturing the most suitable locations in the competitive market
and diverse cities in China. The multi-brand strategies had kept
bringing competitive edge and synergy effects on the brand
building and increase potential in the China fashion retail

market.

MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE
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The established network in the market in the mainland China
region continued to provide future growth opportunities to the
Group and to increase the brand exposure in the major and
second-tiers cities. Under the implementation of integrated
marketing and visual merchandising strategies, activities in both
Hong Kong and China regions had delivered and strengthened
refreshed brand image and new look design concepts for
products of MOISELLE during the year.

In Hong Kong, the Group operated 15 MOISELLE, 3
mademoiselle and 5 imaroon (2009: 16 MOISELLE, 3
mademoiselle and 7 imaroon) retail outlets as at 31 March 2010.
The three brands were separately managed with each having its
own distinctive target customers. The design teams for each
brands worked out their own collections and image stories from
different creative sources of fashion trends. The Group’s retail
operations, however, were managed to pursuit for objectives in

the most effective and efficient manner.

Two (2009: two) stores of MOISELLE were maintained during the
year in Macau. With the increased tourists traveling to and
expatriates staying in Macau, the demand of prestigious fashion
products is expected to grow and the Group will continue to
introduce more attractive and valuable fashion apparel and

accessories products into the market.

At 31 March 2010, the Group operated in Taiwan market 9
MOISELLE stores (2009: 7) and 5 mademoiselle stores (2009: 1)
in Taipei, Taoyuan, Taichung and Kaohsiung. With the expanded
sales network in Taiwan, the Group had managed to penetrate
the Group’s brands into various districts in Taiwan during the

year.

MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Overview

The Group’s turnover increased by approximately 4% to
approximately HK$439,599,000 (2009: HK$423,088,000) during
the year ended 31 March 2010 as compared with 2009. As the
established sales network in the PRC, Macau and Taiwan had
generated improved performance, the revenue of the region
outside Hong Kong increased by approximately 13% to
approximately HK$214,779,000 (2009: HK$190,644,000) during
the year under review. The relatively stable markets outside
Hong Kong had increased the segment turnover ratio from
approximately 45% of 2009 to approximately 49% for the year
ended 31 March 2010.

The revenue earned from Hong Kong segment slightly decreased
by approximately 3% to approximately HK$224,820,000 (2009:
HK$232,444,000) which was mainly due to the slow down of
retail market in Hong Kong after the financial tsunami during the

financial year under review.

During the year under review, the Group’s gross profit margin
was approximately 81%, as compared to approximately 76% of
the previous year. The gross profit margin was improved due to
the increase in brand image which could demand higher
premium on the products sold during the year. Operating
expenses for the year ended 31 March 2010 totaled
approximately HK$297,230,000, compared to approximately
HK$300,555,000 for 2009, slightly decreased by approximately
1%. The overall operational efficiency was increased and the

operating margin became 13% (2009: 7%).

The profit for the year ended 31 March 2010 was approximately
HK$53,669,000 (2009: HK$20,057,000), increased by
approximately HK$33,612,000, 168%. The increase was mainly
the result of the improvement in gross margin and the effective

management of operating expenses.

MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE
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Liquidity and financial resources

During the year, the Group financed its operations with internal
generated cash flows. The Group adopts a prudent financial
policy such that it can meet the financial obligations when they
fall due and maintain a sufficient operating fund for the
development of the Group’s business. At the end of the year, the
Group’s aggregate fixed deposits and cash balances amounted to
approximately HK$170 million (2009: HK$100 million). As at 31
March 2010, the Group maintained aggregate composite
banking facilities of approximately HK$68 million (2009: HK$68
million) with various banks, of which approximately HK$7
million (2009: HK$6 million) were utilised.

The Group continues to enjoy healthy financial position. As at
31 March 2010, the current ratio (current assets divided by
current liabilities) was approximately 4.6 times (2009: 4.1 times)
and the gearing ratio (aggregate of bank borrowings and finance
lease payables divided by shareholders’ equity) was zero (2009:

zero).

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 March 2010, the Company had contingent liabilities in
relation to guarantees given to banks against facilities extended
to certain wholly owned subsidiaries amounting to
approximately HK$7 million (2009: HK$6 million).

During the year ended 31 March 2010, the Company has also
issued a single guarantee to a supplier against obligations or
sums payable for goods and services supplied to a wholly owned
subsidiary. At 31 March 2010, such obligations amounted to
approximately $3 million (2009: $1 million).

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2010, the Group employed 1,108 (2009: 1,241)
employees mainly in Hong Kong and the PRC. Salaries of
employees are maintained at competitive levels while bonuses
are granted on a discretionary basis. Other employee benefits
include mandatory provident fund, statutory and medical
insurance cover, training programmes, a share option scheme

and a share award scheme.
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Executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Yum Kit, aged 51, is the Chairman of the Company.
Mr. Chan is one of the co-founders of the Group and has overall
responsibility for the Group’s overall strategic planning,
formulation of corporate policies and marketing. He has over 33
years of experience in business administration in various
industries including garment manufacturing and trading. Mr.
Chan was awarded the Young Industrialist Awards of Hongkong
by the Federation of Hong Kong Industries in November 2001
and was awarded with the DHL/SCMP Hong Kong Business
Award in the Owner-Operator Award category in December
2001. He was awarded 2006 World Outstanding Chinese Award
by the World Chinese Business Investment Foundation. Mr. Chan
holds an honorary doctorate degree in management from
Armstrong University in the United States. He was also awarded
2004 Associateship by The Professional Validation Council of
Hong Kong Industries in January 2004. He is a fellow member of
Asian Knowledge Management Association. He has been a
member of the DesignSmart Initiative Assessment Panel under
Create Hong Kong since June 2009. He is the husband of Ms.
Tsui How Kiu, Shirley and is the father of Mr. Chan Sze Chun
and Mr. Chan Pak Hei. Mr. Chan is the brother-in-law of Mr.
Chui Hing Yee.

Ms. TSUI How Kiu, Shirley, aged 51, is an executive director.
She is one of the co-founders of the Group and is responsible for
the Group’s design and development functions, as well as
merchandising management and retail operations management.
She has over 33 years of experience in business administration
in various industries including garment manufacturing and
trading. Ms. Tsui is the wife of Mr. Chan, Chairman of the
Company, and is the mother of Mr. Chan Sze Chun and Mr.
Chan Pak Hei. Ms. Tsui is the sister of Mr. Chui Hing Yee.

Mr. CHUI Hing Yee, aged 59, is an executive director. He is one
of the co-founders of the Group and is responsible for the
manufacturing operations of the Group in the PRC. Mr. Chui has
over 33 years of experience in the garment manufacturing
industry. Mr. Chui is the brother of Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley
and is the brother-in-law of Mr. Chan, Chairman of the

Company.
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Mr. CHAN Sze Chun, aged 32, is an executive director. He
joined the Group in December 2000. He is responsible for
overseeing the Group’s overseas market operations. Mr. Chan
Sze Chun holds a bachelor’s degree in commerce from Monash
University of Australia. He is the son of Mr. Chan, Chairman of
the Company, and Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley, and is the brother
of Mr. Chan Pak Hei.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. YU Yuk Ying, Vivian, aged 50, is an independent non-
executive director appointed in January 2002. Ms. Yu is a
solicitor and a partner with Yung, Yu, Yuen & Co., a firm of
solicitors, and has been practising in Hong Kong for over 22
years with a focus in the conveyancing and commercial practice.
She obtained a bachelor’s degree in science from University of
Wisconsin-Madison as her first degree and then passed the
Solicitors’ Final Examination and qualified as a solicitor. Ms. Yu
has over 21 years’ experience in property investment and
management. Ms. Yu was appointed as China-appointed Attesting
Officer in 2003 and was also appointed as an adjudicator of

Immigration Tribunal in December 2006.

Mr. CHU Chun Kit, Sidney, aged 49, is an independent non-
executive director appointed in October 2003. Mr. Chu is
currently the chief executive officer of Merkur Holdings Ltd. He
has 19 years’ experience in international marketing and senior
management role in both the semiconductor and solid-state
lighting industries. Mr. Chu graduated from University of Essex
with a bachelor’s degree in science (electronic engineering) and
received a master’s degree in science from University of

Westminster, London.
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Ms. WONG Shuk Ying, Helen, aged 56, is an independent non-
executive director appointed in September 2004. Ms. Wong is
currently the chief of finance operations and systems
development of Hospital Authority. She has more than 33 years’
experience in management consulting and systems
implementation in both the public and private sectors. Ms. Wong
is a member of the Certified Management Accountants Society of
British Columbia in Canada and holds a bachelor’s degree in

commerce from Queen’s University in Canada.

Senior Management

Mr. WONG Hoi Yuen, lke, aged 47, is the general manager of
the design and merchandising operations of the Group. He has
over 23 years of experience in fashion design and production

management. He joined the Group in January 1987.

Ms. PANG Lin, Elaine, aged 40, is the chief operating officer of
the Group and the company secretary of the Company. Prior to
joining the Group in June 2001, Ms. Pang served as a finance
manager and company secretary of a company listed on the
main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. She
has over 19 years of experience in the audit, accounting and
finance, administration and corporate secretarial fields. She
holds a bachelor of arts degree in accountancy and a master’s
degree in business administration (fashion business) from Hong
Kong Polytechnic University, a master’s degree in corporate
governance from the Open University of Hong Kong and a
bachelor’s degree in Chinese law from Peking University. She is
a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
of the United Kingdom, the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries &

Administrators of the United Kingdom.

Mr. CHAN Pak Hei, aged 22, is the creative manager of the
Group. He joined the Group in May 2009. He is responsible for
overseeing the Group’s design department. Mr. Chan Pak Hei
holds a bachelor of arts degree in fashion management (fashion
retail) from University of Arts London. He is the son of Mr. Chan,
Chairman of the Company, and Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley, and
is the brother of Mr. Chan Sze Chun.
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The company is committed to meeting statutory and regulatory
requirements and adherence to the principles of corporate
governance emphasizing transparency, independence,

accountability, responsibility and fairness.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The company has complied with the code provisions listed in
the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing
Rules”) throughout the year ended 31 March 2010. The only
exception is that Mr. Chan Yum Kit is the chairman of the board
of directors (the “Board”) and also assumes the role of the chief
executive officer. The Board considers that the current
management structure ensures consistent leadership and optimal

efficiency for the operation of the company.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the company’s
code of conduct for dealings in securities of the company by the
directors. Based on specific enquiry of the company’s directors,
the directors have complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2010.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board comprises seven directors, four of which are
executive directors, namely Mr. Chan Yum Kit (Chairman), Ms.
Tsui How Kiu, Shirley, Mr. Chui Hing Yee and Mr. Chan Sze
Chun, and three are independent non-executive directors,
namely Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian, Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney and
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen.
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During the year ended 31 March 2010, four board meetings

were held. The attendance of each director is set out as follows:

AL
Director Attendance record
Mr. Chan Yum Kit 4/4
Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley 4/4
Mr. Chui Hing Yee 4/4
Mr. Chan Sze Chun 2/4
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 4/4
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 4/4
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 4/4

The board of directors is responsible for the formulation of
business strategies for the group and the operational decision

making is delegated to the management team.

The relationship among members of the board is separately

disclosed in the directors and senior management profiles.

TERM OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
The independent non-executive directors were appointed for a
term of two years and are subject to retirement by rotation in

accordance with the articles of association of the company.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The company has received from each of the independent non-
executive directors a confirmation of independence for the year
ended 31 March 2010 pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and considers all the independent non-executive directors to be

independent.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The company has a remuneration committee which was
established in compliance with the CG Code. The members of
the remuneration committee comprise two independent non-
executive directors of the company, Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian
(Chairperson) and Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney, and one executive
director, Mr. Chan Sze Chun.

During the year ended 31 March 2010, two remuneration
committee meetings were held. The attendance of each

committee member is set out as follows:

o FE R0 8%
Director Attendance record
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 2/2
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 2/2
Mr. Chan Sze Chun 1/2

The main role and function of the remuneration committee
consist of determining the remuneration and the terms of
employment of the directors. During the year, the remuneration
committee has assessed the performance of the executive
directors, determined the discretionary bonuses of the executive
directors and approved the terms of executive directors’ service

agreements and non-executive directors’ appointments.

The emoluments of the executive directors are determined with
reference to the duties, responsibilities and experience of the
directors and prevailing market conditions. Besides the basic
salaries and benefits-in-kind as stipulated in the service
agreements, prior approval of the remuneration committee is
also required for performance related benefits of the executive

directors.

The emoluments of the non-executive directors are determined
based on the estimated time spent by them on the company’s

matters.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
During the year, the remuneration paid to the independent

auditors, KPMG, are analysed as follows:

BT
HK$
BT RE Audit services 1,229,000
R Non-audit services 143,348
1,372,348
2 EZB S
EREEE AUDIT COMMITTEE

RABMKBETRBEI2IRRLBRZEES B
EEERERANEE M ERRBERABES -
EREEERARAZUBILFATESEMN
DRAREELL (EF) - REBREERERR
Zt WHMEESER -

RBE-Z-ZEF=ZA=+—-BLFE BT
MABEREZEEER BREEEMEZHERH
T

=
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REEEEEE

BERRLE

TR BREESCHEEERHASEMRM
cERARES AEE PR RFENER
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The company has an audit committee which was established in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the purposes
of reviewing and providing supervision over the group’s financial
reporting process and internal controls. The audit committee
comprises three independent non-executive directors of the
company, Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian (Chairperson), Mr. Chu Chun
Kit, Sidney and Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen, and reports to the
Board.

During the year ended 31 March 2010, two audit committee
meetings were held. The attendance of each committee member

is set out as follows:

HiE RC 8%
Director Attendance record
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 272
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 2/2
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 272

During the year, the audit committee has reviewed with the
management the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the group, the interim and annual financial statements of the
group, met and discussed with the independent auditors, raised
queries and obtained explanations from the management on
issues related to financial and operational control procedures of

the group.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges their responsibilities on the
maintenance of an internal control system which is essential for
effective and efficient operations of the group and is
fundamental in the thorough and regular evaluation of the nature
and extent of the risks to which the group is exposed. Internal
control is defined as a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the achievement of objectives in relation to

the following:

J Effectiveness and efficiency of operations;

Reliability of financial reporting; and

J Compliance with applicable laws and regulations

For the year ended 31 March 2010, the Board, with the
assistance of the management, had conducted an annual review
on the effectiveness of the internal control system of the group,
focusing on three major business cycles of the group, and had
been satisfied with its effectiveness on monitoring and evaluating
the risks. Based on the results, the directors were dedicated to
implement various initiatives to further enhance the existing
internal control system alongside with the ongoing business

development of the group.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR PREPARING ACCOUNTS
The company’s directors acknowledge that they are responsible
for the preparation of financial statements which give a true and

fair view.

STATEMENT BY THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
The statement of the independent auditors of the group regarding
their responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the

independent auditor’s report on pages 29 and 30.
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The directors have pleasure in submitting their annual report
together with the audited financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the group are the design, manufacture,
retail and wholesale of fashion apparel and accessories. The
principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are

set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

The analysis of geographical locations of the operations of the
company and its subsidiaries during the financial year is set out

in note 12 to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 March 2010, the percentages of the
five largest customers combined and the five largest suppliers
combined were less than 30% of the group’s total turnover and

purchases, respectively.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The profit of the group for the year ended 31 March 2010 and
the state of the company’s and the group’s affairs as at that date

are set out in the financial statements on pages 31 to 134.

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
group for each of the last five financial years is set out in pages

135 and 136 of the annual report.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Profit attributable to shareholders, before dividends, of
HK$53,669,000 (2009: HK$20,057,000) has been transferred to
reserves. Other movements in reserves are set out in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity.
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An interim dividend of Hong Kong 2 cents per share (2009:
Hong Kong 2 cents per share) was paid on 20 January 2010. The
directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend of
Hong Kong 10 cents per share (2009: Hong Kong 2 cents per
share) in respect of the year ended 31 March 2010 to all
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members on
27 August 2010.

FIXED ASSETS
Details of the movements in fixed assets of the group during the
year ended 31 March 2010 are set out in note 13 to the financial

statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the company’s share capital are set out in note 24(c)

to the financial statements.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$20,000.

As stipulated by the regulations of the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”), the group participates in defined contribution
retirement plans organised by the relevant authorities for its PRC
employees. The group is required to make contributions to the
retirement plans which are calculated based on certain
prescribed rates on the salaries, bonuses and certain allowances
of its PRC employees. The group has no other material obligation
for the payment of pension benefits associated with such plans

beyond the annual contributions described above.
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RETIREMENT SCHEME (continued)

Employees of the subsidiary carrying on business in Taiwan have
chosen to participate in a defined contribution scheme governed
by the Labour Pension Act. The subsidiary contributes at 6% of
the total salaries of participating employees that choose to
participate in the defined contribution scheme, deposited into
individual pension accounts at the Bureau of Labour Insurance.
Contributions to the defined contribution scheme are charged to

profit or loss when incurred.

DIRECTORS
The directors during the year ended 31 March 2010 and up to

the date of this report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Chan Yum Kit

Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley
Mr. Chui Hing Yee

Mr. Chan Sze Chun

Independent non-executive directors
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian

Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney

Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen

Mr. Chui Hing Yee, Mr. Chan Sze Chun and Ms. Wong Shuk
Ying, Helen will retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting in accordance with article 87 of the company’s articles
of association and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-

election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
The independent non-executive directors were appointed for a
term of two years and are subject to retirement by rotation in

accordance with the articles of association of the company.
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Name of director

RRGOzBHZES

Beneficial interest in shares

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS (continued)

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than normal

statutory obligations.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2010, the interests and short positions of the
directors and the chief executive of the company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as recorded in the
register kept by the company under section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)

were as follows:

BEME

Nature of interest

Mr. Chan Yum Kit

BIELL
Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley

BEREzt
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen

190,872,000 DE R (BEE(1)R(2)
Corporate/Family (Notes (1) and (2))

190,872,000 DB R (BEE1)E2)
Corporate/Family (Notes (1) and (2))

30,000 fBA

Personal
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN

SECURITIES (continued)

Notes:

(1) 190,000,000 of these shares are held by Super Result Consultants
Limited (“Super Result”). The share capital of Super Result is
beneficially owned by Mr. Chan Yum Kit (“Mr. Chan”), Ms. Tsui
How Kiu, Shirley (“Ms. Tsui”) and Mr. Chui Hing Yee as to 46.7%,
46.7% and 6.6% respectively. Each of Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui will
therefore be deemed to be interested in the 190,000,000 shares

held by Super Result as corporate interest.

872,000 of these shares are held by New First Investments Limited
(“New First”). The share capital of New First is beneficially owned
by Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui as to 50% and 50% respectively. Each of
Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui will therefore be deemed to be interested in

the 872,000 shares held by New First as corporate interest.

(2)  Since Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui are married to the other, Mr. Chan
will be deemed to be interested in the shares which Ms. Tsui will

be deemed to be interested in as family interest and vice versa.

In addition to the above, one director has non-beneficial
personal equity interests in certain subsidiaries held for the
benefit of the group. Certain directors also have beneficial
interests in non-voting deferred shares practically carrying no
rights to dividends or to receive notice of or to attend or vote at
any general meeting or to participate in any distribution or

winding up in a subsidiary.

The directors of the company have been granted options under
the company’s share option scheme, details of which are set out

in the section “Share option scheme” below.

Apart from the foregoing, as at 31 March 2010, none of the
directors or the chief executive of the company or their
respective associates had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the company or any
of its associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO, as recorded in the register kept by the company under
section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the company

and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The company has a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) which
was adopted on 25 January 2002 to enable the company to grant
options to selected participants as incentives and rewards for
their contribution to the group. The Scheme shall be valid and

effective for a period of ten years from the date of its adoption.

Under the Scheme, the directors of the company are authorised,
at their discretion, to offer full-time employees, executives or
officers, including the directors of the company or any of its
subsidiaries or any suppliers, consultants, agents and advisers
who will or have contributed to the group, options to subscribe
for such number of new shares of the company as the board of
directors of the company may determine. Upon acceptance of
the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to the company by

way of consideration for the grant.

The exercise price of options is the highest of the nominal value
of the shares, the closing price of the shares on the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant and the average closing price of
the shares on the Stock Exchange for the five trading days

immediately preceding the date of grant.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Scheme at any time during a period commencing on such date
on or after the date on which the option is granted as the
directors may determine in granting the option and expiring at
the close of business on such date as the directors may
determine in granting the option but in any event such period
shall not exceed ten years commencing on the date on which

the option is granted.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme may not exceed 28,000,000
shares, representing 9.93% of the issued share capital of the
company as at the date of this report. The number of shares
available for issue under the Scheme can be increased up to
30% of the shares of the company in issue from time to time,

subject to the approval of the company’s shareholders.

The number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to any individual in any twelve-month period up to and
including the date of grant may not exceed 1% of the shares of
the company in issue as at the date of grant, without prior

approval from the company’s shareholders.

Options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director in any twelve-month period up to and
including the date of grant may not exceed both 0.1% of the
company’s share capital and a value of HK$5 million as at the
date of grant, without prior approval from the company’s

shareholders.

Pursuant to the Scheme, the company had granted options to
certain directors and employees of the company and other
participant to subscribe for shares of the company. A summary of
the movements of the outstanding share options during the year
ended 31 March 2010 is set out below.

25
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BIRRES 8 (&) SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
FREYA RERRE
Number of share options EY RS
£h PA=) ]
R-BRAE BAN/  R-%-%F Market value
BA-A £ £ M ZA=t-A Bk per share
533 BRi Bt Lapsed/ g RE immediately
Balance Granted  Exercised  cancelled Balance  Exercise RiAH il before the
RERAL asat  duringthe  duringthe  during the as at price Date Exercisable  date of grant
Eligible person 1 April 2009 year year year 31 March 2010 per share of grant period of options
#t  (B/R/%) (8/8/%) B
HKS  (DD/MMAYYYY) (DD/MMAYYYY) HK$
£z
Director
REE
Mr. Chan 2,100,000 - - - 2,100,000 115 2/412002  23/4/2002 to 1/4/2012 1.14
hat
Ms. Tsui 2,100,000 - - - 2,100,000 1.15 2/412002  23/4/2002 to 1/4/2012 1.14
Chui Hing Yee 500,000 - - - 500,000 115 2/4/2002  23/4/2002 to 1/4/2012 1.14
R2#&
Chan Sze Chun 900,000 - - - 900,000 115 2/4/2002  23/4/2002 to 1/4/2012 1.14
Yu Yuk Ying, 100,000 - - - 100,000 1.15 2/4/2002  23/4/2002 to 1/412012 1.14
Vivian
RELWESLT
Continuous 20,000 - - 20,000 - 115 2/4/2002  2/4/2003 to 1/4/2012 1.14
contract
employees in aggregate
o T
Suppliers of 200,000 - - - 200,000 115 2/4/2002  23/4/2002 to 1/4/2012 1.14
services in
aggregate
5,920,000 - - 20,000 5,900,000

ERCREBRECEAHRE ZENENI B R

R HFEET(m)(ii) ©

is provided in note 1(m)(ii) to the financial statements.

Information on the accounting policy for share options granted
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year ended 31
March 2010 was the company, any of its holding company,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the directors or the chief executive of the company or
any of their spouses or children under eighteen years of age to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or

debentures of the company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 March 2010, the interests or short positions of the
following shareholder, other than the directors and the chief
executive of the company, in the shares or underlying shares of
the company which have been disclosed to the company
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO have been recorded in the
register kept by the company under section 336 of the SFO:

EEABEEEHERT

BAEZHBHNED L

HERDEH Approximate percentage of
Aggregate long aggregate interests to

position in shares total issued share capital

Super Result

Kt -
1. Super ResultZBRATIHBREE » BLZ T RRE
BEEDREZET46.7% > 46.7%K6.6% °

BRERER EX[EEREBTHRAERES 2
BwIR[BRESE I MBRAHEA L AESREET
BAEBZREEN  BRALARBEZZRBEMR
PlE33elk e REFE 2B RMATRE  R2F—
ZEZA=ZT-R UEAMATIREIQITAREG
HAEEARD PHEAEESAR

67.37% (Btat1)
(Note 1)

190,000,000

Note:

1. The share capital of Super Result is beneficially owned by Mr.
Chan, Ms. Tsui and Mr. Chui Hing Yee as to 46.7%, 46.7% and
6.6% respectively.

Apart from the foregoing, and other than the directors and the
chief executive of the company whose interests are set out in the
sections “Directors’ and chief executive’s interests in securities”
and “Share option scheme” above, no person was recorded in
the register kept by the company under section 336 of the SFO
as having an interest or a short position in the shares or

underlying shares of the company as at 31 March 2010.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contract of significance to which the company, any of its
holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party,
in which a director of the company had a material interest,

subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the company’s
articles of association or the law in the Cayman Islands which
would oblige the company to offer new shares on a pro rata
basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the company’s
listed securities by the company or any of its subsidiaries during
the year.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the company has maintained the
prescribed public float required under the Listing Rules, based
on the information that is publicly available to the company and
within the knowledge of the directors of the company.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution of the re-appointment of KPMG as
independent auditors of the company is to be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the board

Chan Yum Kit

Chairman

Hong Kong, 19 July 2010
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Moiselle International Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Moiselle International Holdings Limited (“the company”) set out
on pages 31 to 134, which comprise the consolidated and
company balance sheets as at 31 March 2010, the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in

the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for

the contents of this report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and
fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the
group as at 31 March 2010 and of the group’s profit and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

19 July 2010
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Consolidated Income Statement

HE-_Z-—FTF=F=1+—HIEFE AB¥5IR) For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E-BF “EENEF
2010 2009
M = Fr Fr
Note $'000 $000
EXE Turnover 3 439,599 423,088
HERA Cost of sales (85,549) (100,098)
EF Gross profit 354,050 322,990
HAhg A Other revenue 4 1,986 2,237
Hith (FE) WEFE Other net (loss)/income 4 (800) 3,230
HER D HBA Selling and distribution costs (239,260) (236,606)
THRHEMESEME Administrative and other operating expenses (57,970) (63,949)
RERF Profit from operations 58,006 27,902
BE AN Finance costs 5(a) 3) (141)
THEE 2 hERE 31
(B8) F48 Net valuation gains/(losses) on 13
— TR EEY — land and buildings 949 (181)
- REWHE — investment properties 4,400 (200)
i EE RRZEE Share of losses of a jointly controlled entity (90) -
BRBE AR F Profit before taxation 5 63,262 27,380
Frig®i Income tax 6(a) (9,593) (7,323)
FRER Profit for the year 53,669 20,057
TH AL : Attributable to:
RA RS RR Equity shareholders of the company 9 53,669 20,057
BRER Earnings per share 11
B Basic $0.197T $0.077C
#E Diluted $0.197T $0.07 7T
FIVEIBAEZMEBA I B ®/R 2 — 2D - BEF The notes on pages 39 to 134 form part of these financial
AABEERREEFRNEN 2BAREFEH statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders
K EE24(b) ° of the company attributable to the profit for the year are set out
in note 24(b).
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HE-Z-—FTF=F=1+—HIL5E GAB5IR) For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—B-%F ZETNEF
2010 2009
B aE Fr Tr
Note $000 $’000
FRER Profit for the year 53,669 20,057
FREMEHE RS Other comprehensive income for the
(MBRHREREHN year (after tax and reclassification
DEHE) adjustments) 10
BREEBRIINE AR Exchange differences on translation of
MigHRKk 2 ELERH financial statements of subsidiaries
outside Hong Kong 514 592
BEBRLRESEY 2 Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation of land
BEHEB (B4 and buildings held for own use 48,090 (20,394)
32
48,604 (19,802)
FREERSEE Total comprehensive income for the year 102,273 255
THAL G Attributable to:
RN RIS R R Equity shareholders of the company 102,273 255
EIIR4AEZHEBAMBRR 2 —HD ° The notes on pages 39 to 134 form part of these financial
statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

MZT—ZFF=A=+—H (LLB%5’R) At 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E2-ZF —EENE
2010 2009
Mt = Fr Fr T T
Note $/000 $/000 $'000 $'000
FRBEE Non-current assets
EEEE Fixed assets
—-REWE ~ Investment properties 13 20,220 15,820
-~ HitEE&EE — Other fixed assets 13 247,752 199,036
267,972 214,856
REegnm ks Interest in a jointly controlled
entity 15 326 -
Hih &= Other assets 16 12,929 14,226
BEREREE Deferred tax assets 23(b) 5,258 3,002
286,485 232,084
RBEE Current assets 33
FE Inventories 17 55,597 73,349
BRI R A EUWER  Trade and other receivables 18 49,480 47,185
A EIEBIIE Tax recoverable 23(a) 2 =
BERBELEEY Cash and cash equivalents 19(a) 170,140 100,432
275,219 220,966
nEEE Current liabilities
FEARA KR EMEMNT  Trade and other payables 20 53,197 49,507
P B I8 Tax payable 23(a) 6,393 4,194
59,590 53,701
REEEFE Net current assets 215,629 167,265
EERRBEEAE Total assets less current
liabilities 502,114 399,349
FRBEE Non-current liabilities
EIEFTEHERE Deferred tax liabilities 23(b) 27,168 15,395
BEFE NET ASSETS 474,946 383,954
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WZT—ZFF=F=+—H (LLB%F’R) At 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E-FF —EENF
2010 2009

M = Fr Fr Fr T

Note $’000 $’000 $'000 $'000
XK EE Capital and reserves
(&N Share capital 24(c) 2,821 2,821
e Reserves 472,125 381,133
BRRER TOTAL EQUITY 474,946 383,954

ESER-F-FTFELATNARBLHTRE -

34

Chan Yum Kit

FI9RM4EZHEBARMBERK 2 — D °

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
19 July 2010.

w1

)
)
) EZE Directors
)
Tsui How Kiu, Shirley )

The notes on pages 39 to 134 form part of these financial

statements.
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Balance Sheet

MZT—ZFF=A=+—H (LLB%5’R) At 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E-EF —ZEThF
2010 2009
M & Fr Fr I SEot
Note $/000 $/000 $'000 $'000
FREEE Non-current assets
RHB AR 2R Interest in subsidiaries 14 253,466 188,217
REBEE Current assets
FEWERFR R A fEUWFK  Trade and other receivables 18 10,109 28,109
RERBREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 19(a) 896 244
11,005 28,353
nREEE Current liabilities
IR R ALK Trade and other payables 20 2,069 1,737 35
2,069 1,737
REEEFRE Net current assets 8,936 26,616
EEFHE NET ASSETS 262,402 214,833
BEXR#E Capital and reserves 24(a)
[N Share capital 2,821 2,821
(EX] Reserves 259,581 212,012
HR R TOTAL EQUITY 262,402 214,833

HEGR-Z—SFELATAARELHARY -

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

19 July 2010.
)
)
) ¥ZE Directors
BREAR ®IE )
Chan Yum Kit Tsui How Kiu, Shirley )

EIIB4EZHEBAUBRR 28D -

The notes on pages 39 to 134 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE-Z-—FTF=F=1+—HIL5E GAB5IR) For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

18R
BEN
e EfiRR
BBAE  Land and
k& ROEE EHFEE EARE  Stttory  buillding REEA ag
Share Share Other  Exchange  reserve revaluation  Retained Total
capital ~ premium reserve reserve funds reserve profits Equity
(i3 T Tr T T T Tr T Tr
Note §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000 §'000
Wik2d0 Wi WM BEMQG) KA WA
Note 24(c) Note 24(d)i) Note 24(c)(ii) Note 24(c)ii) Note 24(c)fiv) Note 24(c)v)
RZZENEMA-A2ER Balance at 1 April 2008 281 58,601 121 13,883 6161 89540 237955 409,082
ZEEN/ENF2REEH . Changes in equity for 2008/09:
36 ZEBREZRE Dividend approved in respect
of the previous year 24(b)(i) - - - - - - (19740 (19742
AEEEERZKE Dividend declared in respect
of the current year 24(b)(i) - - - - - - (5,641) (5,641)
REHEE Transfer between reserves - - - - 2,890 - (2,890) -
EREUNEEE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - 592 - (20,394) 20,057 255
RZZSAEZA=1-BR Balance at 31 March 2009
ZBEAERA-AZER and 1 April 2009 280 58601 01 WA 9051 6946 229739 383954
ZESNE/-FEZBEZT:  Changes in equity for 2009/10:
FEDHEZRE Dividend approved in respect
of the previous year 24(b)i) - - - - - - (5,641) (5,641)
FEEEERZBE Dividend declared in respect
of the current year 24(b)i) - - - - - - (5,640) (5,640)
REEES Transfer between reserves - - - - 285 - (285) -
ERREREES Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - 514 - 48,090 53,669 102,273
RZZ-FEZB=t+-H2&8  Balance at 31 March 2010 280 58601 11 14989 9336 117236 271,840 474946

FEI9E1B4EZHMEBATBHRER 22— D -
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HE-_Z-—FTF=F=1+—HIEFE AB¥5IR) For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—Z-%F ZEENE
2010 2009
Bt Tr T Tr Fr
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

BERY Operating activities
REXBELEZRS Cash generated from operations 19(b) 100,050 64,243
(B4) /REHE Tax (paid)/refunded

—ENEBREH — Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (386) (19)

—REEBFEH — Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded - 1,259

-2 HEBE — PRC tax paid (7,922) (7,475)
REFHHEZ Net cash generated from operating

ReFHE activities 91,742 58,008

37

REEH Investing activities
FHBE=@A#% (Increase)/decrease in deposits with

M2 BITER banks with maturity more than

(gm) /Emd three months when placed (47,955) 3,333
BABTEENH Payment for purchase of fixed assets (11,589) (14,768)
HEBEEEEMBRE Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 256 111
HESREEMSRE Proceeds from sale of financial assets - 476
ERFIR Interest received 440 959
RETEFMAZREFHE  Net cash used in investing activities (58,848) (9,889)

MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE



Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% 5 b4k B A FR A 7

HEBEmER
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HE-Z-—FTF=F=+—HILEE GAB5IR) For the year ended 31 March 2010 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

—E2-%F% “ZENEF
2010 2009
Bt Fr Tr Tr Tr
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
MEFRD Financing activities
B2RFE Interest paid 3) (141)
ERE Dividends paid (11,281) (25,383)
METEHAAZREFE  Net cash used in financing
activities (11,284) (25,524)
RERREEEY Net increase in cash and
12058 cash equivalents 21,610 22,595
38 ROA-BzHE Cash and cash equivalents
RREZEY at 1 April 100,432 76,747
Exg8oxE Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes 143 1,090
R=B=+-HzHR% Cash and cash equivalents
RELZEY at 31 March 19(a) 122,185 100,432
FEHFRERS Major non-cash transaction:
BE-ZZhF=ZA=1T—BLEE FTEEN The group traded-in a motor vehicle for $494,000 during the
494,000 T A RS RE—BH-FR - LWES year ended 31 March 2009. There is no major non-cash
RFRERZ transaction during the year.
B3R B4R M EBAMBHRR 2 —HD ° The notes on pages 39 to 134 form part of these financial

statements.

MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). A
summary of the significant accounting policies

adopted by the group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period
of the group and the company. Note 2 provides
information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the group for the current and prior accounting

periods reflected in these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. FEESFABXRGAE

(b)

MBHREZEBUEE
BE_Z-ZTE=-F=1+—HILE
ErReBEREceEEArAQATARE
MEAR (FBAIAERE] UARAK
EEREE QT 2 EH ©

REMEREMAAZTEEER
BERAE ETIHEETIADR
BEFIR (R T X 2g 5t BUR AT E)
BRoN

- REME (RHEE1E) s &

= HihAETHREEY  Z
ETHREEYZAAEE
EREERBKE S BTE
BEEEEEREAREHE
(RHEE1NHRI1() °

RRLEEFA(EBHBREEL)
ZHMBREFEEEBFLHE
et R MZEHE - R R
BREFERRZEARMARZ
EEREBE WARMXEHE-
ZEMTREBABRRIDREBEL
BRREEBERERZERRTIE
BEZRRHMEAZREEMES -
FE#HREREEREME A RER
HittREMSH 2 EERBEZIR
EEMELGET2EE - BREHF
HEHBIREFHETF

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2010 comprise the company and
its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
“group”) and the group’s interest in a jointly

controlled entity.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of
the financial statements is the historical cost basis
except that the following assets are stated at their
fair value as explained in the accounting policies

set out below:

- investment properties (see note 1(e)); and

= other leasehold land and buildings, for
which the fair values cannot be measured
separately at the inception of the lease and
the entire lease is classified as a finance

lease (see notes 1(f) and 1(g)).

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources.

Actual results may differ from these estimates.

MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA ¥ 51 7R ) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects

both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have a significant
effect on the financial statements and major
sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in

note 31.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the group.
Control exists when the group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In
assessing control, potential voting rights that

presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the
date that control commences until the date that
control ceases. Intra-group balances and
transactions and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised gains but only to the extent that there

is no evidence of impairment.

In the company’s balance sheet, an investment in
a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment

losses (see note 1(h)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. FEEFABXRGE

(d)

BEQH
RERAREAKRERALAEA
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WEBEELAE (RKEIH) -
FEBFRERRECENEERZ
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W3k B AR S 2 W sk R TP HERR

HEAEBRLEEE QA ZBHIER
MEEGEZ AAXAEENESS
HEZ  UEFLBIAE-SEHE -
EREERAEN EEREEEL
REBRLERARBRECEENSZ
AEBRM-BREBNHS  AKH
FEZRGEABRERETEZRE
REE BEREELERAEER
BERRAZREFECAMREE
%o

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Jointly controlled entity

A jointly controlled entity is an entity which
operates under a contractual arrangement
between the group or company and other parties,
where the contractual arrangement establishes that
the group or company and one or more of the
other parties share joint control over the

economic activity of the entity.

An investment in a jointly controlled entity is
accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements under the equity method. Under the
equity method, the investment is initially recorded
at cost and adjusted thereafter for the post
acquisition change in the group’s share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss
relating to the investment (see note 1(h)). The
group’s share of the post-acquisition, post-tax
results of the investees and any impairment losses
for the year are recognised in the consolidated
income statement, whereas the group’s share of
the post-acquisition post-tax items of the
investees’ other comprehensive income is
recognised in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income.

When the group’s share of losses exceeds its
interest in the jointly controlled entity, the group’s
interest is reduced to nil and recognition of further
losses is discontinued except to the extent that
the group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
investee. For this purpose, the group’s interest is
the carrying amount of the investment under the
equity method together with the group’s long-term
interests that in substance form part of the group’s

net investment in the jointly controlled entity.

MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 51 7R ) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

(e)

Jointly controlled entity (continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the group and its jointly
controlled entity are eliminated to the extent of
the group’s interest in the investee, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case

they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold
interest (see note 1(g)) to earn rental income and/
or for capital appreciation. These include land

held for a currently undetermined future use.

Investment properties are stated in the balance
sheet at fair value. Any gain or loss arising from a
change in fair value or from the retirement or
disposal of an investment property is recognised
in profit or loss. Rental income from investment
properties is accounted for as described in note
1(p)(ii).

When the group holds a property interest under
an operating lease to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation, the interest is classified
and accounted for as an investment property on a
property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an
investment property is accounted for as if it were
held under a finance lease (see note 1(g)), and the
same accounting policies are applied to that
interest as are applied to other investment
properties leased under finance leases. Lease
payments are accounted for as described in note
1(g).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. FEEFABXRGAE
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(®

Other fixed assets

The land held for own use under operating leases
and buildings thereon, where the fair values of the
leasehold interest in the land and buildings cannot
be measured separately at the inception of the
lease and the building is not clearly held under an
operating lease (see note 1(g)) are stated in the
balance sheet at their revalued amount, being
their fair value at the date of the revaluation less

any subsequent accumulated depreciation.

Revaluations are performed with sufficient
regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of
these assets does not differ materially from that
which would be determined using fair values at

the balance sheet date.

Other items of fixed assets are stated in the balance
sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses (see note 1(h)).

Changes arising on the revaluation of properties
held for own use are generally dealt with in other
comprehensive income and are accumulated
separately in equity in the property revaluation

reserve. The only exceptions are as follows:

- when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will
be charged to profit or loss to the extent
that it exceeds the amount held in the
reserve in respect of that same asset

immediately prior to the revaluation; and

- when a surplus arises on revaluation, it
will be credited to profit or loss to the
extent that a deficit on revaluation in
respect of that same asset had previously

been charged to profit or loss.

MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. XESHBREMAE 1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

0] HtEEEE (&) () Other fixed assets (continued)
BESIHEREEEERREEN Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
BRUHERS FHEEEBEENWERE disposal of an item of fixed assets are determined
SHECBNEHEE  LRBER as the difference between the net disposal
HEEREERKRER - EAHE proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and
NEGBRHEHELRBEEARS are recognised in profit or loss on the date of
B MASEFIEEBRRK - retirement or disposal. Any related revaluation

surplus is transferred from the revaluation reserve

to retained profits and is not reclassified to profit

or loss.

EEEEHBENTERERAERE Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or

REFEH I AERPHEE RS valuation of items of fixed assets, less their

ER AT RNSEE (WE)  5HF&F estimated residual value, if any, using the straight

EWMT line method over their estimated useful lives as

follows: 45

- VABESE T 2 BEYIR = buildings situated on leasehold land are
HE Z K EwmH R A& depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired
A A F R (BI & A% B 8 e &t terms of lease and their estimated useful
BE+H) 2BEENERE - lives, being 50 years from the date of

completion.

- HEMEEE TERZEEH (UBREERE)

- Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of 5 years and the period of the lease

= TEREREM T&

- Plant and machinery 10 years

- BMREEEE BETEF

- Furniture and fixtures 5 to 10 years

- ERRBDELEE =ZREFE

- Computer and office equipment 3 to 5 years

- _E BF

- Motor vehicles 5 years

MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 51 7R ) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. FEEFBXRGE
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(®

(g

Other fixed assets (continued)

Where parts of an item of fixed assets have
different useful lives, the cost or valuation of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between
the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Both the useful life of an asset and its residual

value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
group determines that the arrangement conveys a
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed
period of time in return for a payment or a series
of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the

arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the group
Assets that are held by the group under
leases which transfer to the group
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the group are
classified as operating leases, with the

following exceptions:

- property held under operating
leases that would otherwise meet
the definition of an investment
property is classified as investment
property on a property-by-property
basis and, if classified as investment
property, is accounted for as if held
under a finance lease (see note
1(e)); and
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g) Leased assets (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Classification of assets leased to the group

(continued)

- land held for own use under an
operating lease, the fair value
of which cannot be measured
separately from the fair value of a
building situated thereon at the
inception of the lease, is accounted
for as being held under a finance
lease, unless the building is also
clearly held under an operating
lease. For these purposes, the
inception of the lease is the time
that the lease was first entered into
by the group, or taken over from

the previous lessee.

Operating lease charges

Where the group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made
under the leases are charged to profit or
loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased
asset. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to
profit or loss in the accounting period in

which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease term
except where the property is classified as

an investment property (see note 1(e)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. FEEFABXRGAE 1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(hy EERE (h)  Impairment of assets

(i) EERKEAZEFKERAM (i) Impairment of investment in debt and

FEW % 2 a8 equity securities and other receivables
REERESELEEIERS Investments in debt and equity securities
BREASEHEAAEARZ (other than investments in subsidiaries: see
BERBREAZBZRE (R note 1(h)(ii)) and other current and non-
BARZBRERIN : R current receivables that are stated at cost
1(h)(ii)) & E 157 8 &% 36 R B or amortised cost are reviewed at each
U UBEERESEESH balance sheet date to determine whether
ZRERE RETEE there is objective evidence of impairment.
BEEAEEEEEUT — Objective evidence of impairment includes
BERZHEBESTECEEY observable data that comes to the attention
g of the group about one or more of the

following loss events:

48 - ERABERUBHEE - significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;
- BREH  flakRmE — a breach of contract, such as a default
HEZENERARERIEA ; or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;
- ERATEBRERET - it becoming probable that the debtor
H B #HEA R will enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation; and

- B W5 BBEIERE — significant changes in the technological,
BEEEAZHEMY market, economic or legal environment
BEBABTRAEE - that have an adverse effect on the

debtor.
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B 785 A

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of investment in debt and
equity securities and other receivables
(continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment
loss is determined and recognised as

follows:

- For investments in the jointly
controlled entity recognised using
the equity method (see note 1(d)),
the impairment loss is measured by
comparing the recoverable amount
of the investment as a whole with
its carrying amount in accordance
with note 1(h)(ii). The impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable
amount in accordance with note

1(h)(ii).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of investment in debt and

equity securities and other receivables

(continued)

For trade and other current
receivables and other financial
assets carried at amortised cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of
these assets), where the effect of
discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively
where financial assets carried at
amortised cost share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past
due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired.
Future cash flows for financial
assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based
on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics

similar to the collective group.
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(LA 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of assets (continued)

Impairment of investment in debt and

equity securities and other receivables

(continued)
If in a subsequent period the
amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be
linked objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss. A
reversal of an impairment loss shall
not result in the asset’s carrying
amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised

in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except
for impairment losses recognised in respect
of trade debtors included within trade and
other receivables, whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote. In this
case, the impairment losses for doubtful
debts are recorded using an allowance
account. When the group is satisfied that
recovery is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against trade
debtors directly and any amounts held in
the allowance account relating to that debt
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously charged to the
allowance account are reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written

off directly are recognised in profit or loss.
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at each balance sheet date to
identify indications that the following
assets may be impaired or an impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists

or may have decreased:

- fixed assets (other than properties

carried at revalued amounts); and

- investments in subsidiaries

If any such indication exists, the asset’s

recoverable amount is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset
is the greater of its fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. Where an
asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating

unit).
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1. FEEHBE#A 1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(hy EEREGE) (h)  Impairment of assets (continued)
(if) B & EpiE (&) (i) Impairment of other assets (continued)
- BRBERE - Recognition of impairment losses
BEBEREEED An impairment loss is recognised in
M ENREELSE profit or loss if the carrying amount
UHREEESNA of an asset, or the cash-generating
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unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated
to reduce the carrying amount of
the assets in the unit (or group of

units) on a pro rata basis, except

HEFSRLSEZER that the carrying value of an asset
HAKRG WD REHH will not be reduced below its 53
EXASEARER(E individual fair value less costs to

REEERE) ©

sell, or value in use, if determinable.

- HEEEED - Reversals of impairment losses
fisi & FA LA 2 AT U =] An impairment loss is reversed if
HENMGTRERR there has been a favourable change

Ml FELEE
HEBBEED - &

in the estimates used to determine

the recoverable amount. A reversal

1 By i (B & 18 AR BR of an impairment loss is limited to
REEEFBRARBE the asset’s carrying amount that
BiEMEEEENE would have been determined
EREEEARFT had no impairment loss been
B[O R ESBEER recognised in prior years. Reversals
REE K FEREA of impairment losses are credited to
BER - profit or loss in the year in which

the reversals are recognised.
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

(@)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)~ Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange, the
group is required to prepare an interim
financial report in compliance with HKAS
34, Interim financial reporting, in respect
of the first six months of the financial year.
At the end of the interim period, the group
applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it
would at the end of the financial year (see
notes 1(h)(i) and (ii)).

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net

realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in-first-out
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and

condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated

costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in
the period in which the related revenue is
recognised. The amount of any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is
recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period

in which the reversal occurs.
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(LA 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

(k)

U]

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at
amortised cost less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note 1(h)), except where the
receivables are interest-free loans made to related
parties without any fixed repayment terms or the
effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such
cases, the receivables are stated at cost less

allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised
at fair value. Except for financial guarantee
liabilities measured in accordance with note 1(o0)
(i), trade and other payables are subsequently
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case

they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at

acquisition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)

Employee benefits

(i)

(if)

Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year
in which the associated services are
rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would
be material, these amounts are stated at

their present values.

Share-based payment

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in a
capital reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at the grant date using the
binomial lattice model, taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the
options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled
to the share options, the total estimated
fair value of the share options is spread
over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options

will vest.

MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE



1. ZESHBREMAE
m EEEFNE)

(i1)

(iii)

MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE

Rt BEEZ 5 (&)
REBHBELRYETER
B BREREETHME-
HUARFEBRIZREBAR
BZEMAE RETRST
ZFEEEBERATA
B SR EA B A ERRE
AERIEREZEEMAXH
EERABEEZRNE - REB
BEH BRARHAXZEHE
ATHRE URREBELEE
BEEB2BREHE (XRE
FiEEAERERE) I
fit R ERBEZEZEE QTR
NHEERZEBRAME
BHOR W RIBRSN - BB 2 1
BB EROER 2 ERNH
BAER BEEEEZBER
BREETHE (HRERAR
NRER) NBERECER
(AREEBEREREEF)
Rl e

BRBEF
BHERBMNREEAKEARE
AWEERRTEERER
O ZEr B EE AR I
BERBRTRELLERANH
R B & A 42 5 1R A B
R o

Annual Report 2010 4E 44t

B 285 e 2% B

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m)  Employee benefits (continued)

(i)

(iif)

Share-based payment (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of
share options that is expected to vest is
reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior
years is charged/credited to profit or
loss for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for
recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve. On the
vesting date, the amount recognised as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the actual
number of share options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due
to not achieving vesting conditions that
relate to the market price of the company’s
shares. The equity amount is recognised in
the capital reserve until either the option is
exercised (when it is transferred to the
share premium account) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to

retained profits).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when,
and only when, the group demonstrably
commits itself to terminate employment or
to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal
plan which is without realistic possibility

of withdrawal.
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

Income tax

(i)

(if)

(iii)

Income tax for the year comprises current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in

equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on
the taxable income for the year, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date, and any adjustment

to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise
from deductible and taxable temporary
differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise
from unused tax losses and unused tax

credits.
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n) Income tax (continued)

(iii)

(continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all
deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax
assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse either in the same
period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or
in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried
back or forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences
support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken
into account if they relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or

credit can be utilised.
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

Income tax (continued)

(iii)

(continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of
deferred tax assets and liabilities are those
temporary differences arising from the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a
business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable
that the differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable

that they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner
of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax

assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset
is reviewed at each balance sheet date and
is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit
to be utilised. Any such reduction is
reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will

be available.
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(n) Income tax (continued)

(iv)

Current tax balances and deferred tax
balances, and movements therein, are
presented separately from each other and
are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred
tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if
the company or the group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the
following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the company or the
group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously;
or

- in the case of deferred tax assets
and liabilities, if they relate to
income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities,
which, in each future period
in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be
settled or recovered, intend
to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current
tax liabilities on a net basis
or realise and settle
simultaneously.
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(0)  Financial guarantees issued, provisions and

contingent liabilities

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that
require the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to
make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”)
for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of

a debt instrument.

Where the group issues a financial
guarantee, the fair value of the guarantee
(being the transaction price, unless the fair
value can otherwise be reliably estimated)
is initially recognised as deferred income
within trade and other payables. Where
consideration is received or receivable for
the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance
with the group’s policies applicable to that
category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an
immediate expense is recognised in profit
or loss on initial recognition of any

deferred income.
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(0)  Financial guarantees issued, provisions and

contingent liabilities (continued)

(i)

(i)

Financial guarantees issued (continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially
recognised as deferred income is amortised
in profit or loss over the term of the
guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised in accordance with note
1(0)(ii) if and when (i) it becomes probable
that the holder of the guarantee will call
upon the group under the guarantee, and
(i) the amount of that claim on the group
is expected to exceed the amount currently
carried in trade and other payables in
respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated

amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other
liabilities of uncertain timing or amount
when the group or the company has a legal
or constructive obligation arising as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the
time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the

obligation.
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(0)

(p)

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and

contingent liabilities (continued)

(i)

Other provisions and contingent liabilities
(continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of

economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the

consideration received or receivable. Provided it

is probable that the economic benefits will flow to

the group and the revenue and costs, if

applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is

recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i)

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are
delivered to the customers which is taken
to be the point in time when the customers
have accepted the goods and the related
risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales
taxes and is after deduction of any trade

discounts.
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p)

(q)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss in
equal instalments over the periods covered
by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from
the use of leased asset. Lease incentives
granted are recognised in profit or loss as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease

payments receivable.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues

using effective interest method.

Service fee income

Service fee income is recognised when the
related services are rendered and the
amount receivable can be measured

reliably.

Translation of foreign currencies

(i)

Functional currency and presentation
currency

Items included in the financial statements
of each of the Group’s subsidiaries are
measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional

and presentation currency.
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(q)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

(if)

Foreign currency transactions during the
year are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the
balance sheet date. Exchange gains and

losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates the fair value was

determined.

The results of foreign operations are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Balance sheet items are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
closing foreign exchange rates at the
balance sheet date. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange

reserve.
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(q)

(r)

(s)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

(iii) (continued)
On disposal of a foreign operation, the
cumulative amount of the exchange
differences relating to that foreign
operation is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss when the profit or loss on

disposal is recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in

which they are incurred.

Related parties
For the purposes of these financial statements, a

party is considered to be related to the group if:

(i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, to
control the group or exercise significant
influence over the group in making
financial and operating policy decisions, or

has joint control over the group;

(ii) the group and the party are subject to

common control;

(iii)  the party is an associate of the group or a
joint venture in which the group is a

venturer;
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1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

(®

Related parties (continued)

(iv)  the party is a member of key management
personnel of the group or the group’s
parent, or a close family member of such
an individual, or is an entity under the
control, joint control or significant

influence of such individuals;

(v) the party is a close family member of a
party referred to in (i) or is an entity under
the control, joint control or significant

influence of such individuals; or

(vi)  the party is a post-employment benefit plan
which is for the benefit of employees of the
group or of any entity that is a related

party of the group.

Close family members of an individual are those
family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that individual in

their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the group’s various lines of

business and geographical locations.
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1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(t)

Segment reporting (continued)

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature of
production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of
the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these

criteria.

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The HKICPA has issued one new HKFRS, a number of

amendments to HKFRSs and new Interpretations that are

first effective for the current accounting period of the

group and the company. Of these, the following

developments are relevant to the group’s financial

statements:

HKFRS 2, Share-based payment

HKFRS 8, Operating segments

HKAS 1 (revised 2007), Presentation of financial

statements

HKAS 23, Borrowing costs

HKAS 27, Consolidated and separate financial

statements

Improvements to HKFRSs (2008)
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The amendments to HKFRS 2, HKAS 23 and HKAS 27
have had no impact on the group’s financial statements
as the amendments were consistent with policies already
adopted by the group. The impact of the remainder of

these developments is as follows:

- HKFRS 8 requires segment disclosure to be based
on the way that the group’s chief operating
decision maker regards and manages the group,
with the amounts reported for each reportable
segment being the measures reported to the
group’s chief operating decision maker for the
purposes of assessing segment performance and
making decisions about operating matters. This
contrasts with the presentation of segment
information in prior years which was based on a
disaggregation of the group’s financial statements
into segments based on related products and
services and on geographical areas. The adoption
of HKFRS 8 has not resulted in significant changes
in the presentation of the group’s segment
information as segment information has been
previously presented on a basis consistent with
the internal information reported to the group’s
chief operating decision maker.

- As a result of the adoption of HKAS 1 (revised

2007), details of changes in equity during the
period arising from transactions with equity
shareholders in their capacity as such have been
presented separately from all other income and
expenses in a revised consolidated statement of
changes in equity. All other items of income and
expense are presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
Corresponding amounts have been restated to
conform to the new presentation. This change in
presentation has no effect on reported profit or
loss, total income and expense or net assets for
any of the periods presented.

MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE



BN BRz2E (A)
[BEBMBRELN Z2BE (ZEENEF)
BREBERSTMASREHEBYBER
HEAMER 2 —RIIMARIFEY K 2B
Ao EBR  UTEITERAEE ZETH
KRS

- RMBEBETEREIR/REY
F/® ERRREMEEZDE
ZAREEREATSEHAERY
XEHEBUREERE)EAR
BEIR - EARERBEERES
RER  EFAUARAEIRZE
RENERFERAZBR - - R
BE BEAMEARSTEIER B
FEERIRIL  TTRAUAR
BEIR MEEFMRENERRE
BRER HRAREREILEE
MEEPRENE WERKEH
TEHMENE2R/PFM 2 EEFER
BRENTE -

AEBEANERERMANASH BB RE
Mz FERT ~ MEA R 28 (RHEE32) -

R

KPR ZEFEXEBAREER AEB
FTEERALH BB ZERHREN
Pl & K% F &ff

EXFECEEmBRE2FE TEEFEE
ER - AEHBREMERTH -

Annual Report 2010 4R 44t

B 285 2 B

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5 7R ) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The “improvements to HKFRSs (2008)” comprise a
number of minor and non-urgent amendments to a range
of HKFRSs which the HKICPA has issued as an omnibus
batch of amendments. Of these, the following
amendment has resulted in changes to the group’s

accounting policies:

= As a result of amendments to HKAS 40, Investment
property, investment property which is under
construction will be carried at fair value at the
earlier of when the fair value first becomes
reliably measurable and the date of completion of
the property. Any gain or loss will be recognised
in profit or loss, consistent with the policy
adopted for all other investment properties carried
at fair value. Previously such property was carried
at cost until the construction was completed, at
which time it was fair valued with any gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss. As the group
does not currently have any investment property
under construction, this change in policy has no
impact on net assets or profit or loss for any of the

periods presented.

The group did not early adopt the new amendments, new
standards and interpretations that are not yet effective for

the current accounting period (see note 32).

TURNOVER

The principal activity of the company is investment
holding. The principal activities of the group are the
design, manufacture, retail and wholesale of fashion

apparel and accessories.

Turnover represents the invoiced value of goods sold,

excluding value added tax and net of trade discounts.
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4. Hthm AR EAh (F18) WEFHE 4. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET (LOSS)/INCOME
—EZ-ZF —EENEF
2010 2009
Fr T
$’000 $'000
Hiplk A Other revenue
RITFRZFIE LA Interest income from bank deposits 440 887
REMFHETRE Gross rental from investment properties 574 574
BRIEE WA Service fee income 420 420
WA Sundry income 552 356
1,986 2,237
—EZ-ZF —EENEF
72 2010 2009
Fr T
$’000 $'000
Hib (&B) WS FHE Other net (loss)/income
BAFS2EBERKER Net realised and unrealised losses on
BRI equity securities - (14)
HEEEEEy () hsE Net (loss)/gain on disposal of fixed assets (578) 37
FRE
EX (BB haFE Net exchange (loss)/gain (222) 3,207
(800) 3,230
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5. BRBLATEF 5. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
BRBIADER 2R (FHA) ¢ Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/
(crediting):
—E-EF ZETHEF
2010 2009
T T
$000 $'000
@@ BB (a)  Finance costs:
RITER R H A Interest on bank advances and
BEZAE other borrowings 3 141
by BINA (FRE (b)  Staff costs (excluding directors’
BEEME (ME7)) remuneration (note 7)):
73
RERKEARGEIZ Contributions to defined contribution
X retirement plan 5,370 5,023
& TERHAMER Salaries, wages and other benefits 76,845 83,204
82,215 88,227
(0  HfwER: (c)  Other items:
R Auditors’ remuneration
- BRERE — audit services 1,229 1,100
— HAtpR® - other services 143 140
e Depreciation 21,153 23,233
B2 RWIRR 2 BIERE Impairment losses on trade debtors - 195
EEEEZBEER Impairment losses on fixed assets 719 -
TREEYEE Operating lease charges in respect of
HEER land and buildings
- REHEENR — minimum lease payments 138,971 135,931
- HEHEE — contingent rentals 10,269 10,482
FRYIREMEEE Rentals receivable from investment
BRE#BI522,0007T properties less direct outgoings of
(ZZZNHF :2,0007) $2,000 (2009: $2,000) (572) (572)
TFERA (MaE17) Cost of inventories * (note 17(b)) 85,549 100,098
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5. BRBLATER (& 5. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued)
! FERAB18,618,000T (=ZEE : Cost of inventories includes $18,618,000 (2009:
NE :22,717,000T) » BEET $22,717,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation
RE-MERKEHEER A and operating lease charges, which amount is also
HEITERALRDBISIRHMEE included in the respective total amounts disclosed
5h)H & B EREF - separately above or in note 5(b) for each of these

types of expenses.

6. GEBRBRRIITZIEH 6. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEMENT
(@ HEBEBERARZIHER: (@)  Taxation in the consolidated income statement
represents:
—E-%F ZETNEF
2010 2009
Fr Fr
$/000 $000
74
REABIR - BB AEH Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax
REERE Provision for the year 442 83
L ERBIR Under-provision in respect of prior years 15 74
457 157
HEBIR — Current tax - PRC
NEERE Provision for the year 10,048 7,046
ELEREH Deferred tax
TREMERCEE Origination and reversal of temporary
e differences (906) 128
BESBEIELERIELER  Effect of changes in tax rate on
7% deferred tax balances (6) (8)
912) 120
9,593 7,323
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6. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEMENT (continued)

(@)

Taxation in the consolidated income statement
represents: (continued)

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2010
is calculated at 16.5% (2009: 16.5%) of the
estimated assessable profits for the year. Taxation
for the PRC and overseas subsidiaries is charged
at the appropriate current rates of taxation ruling

in the relevant tax jurisdictions.

In accordance with the relevant PRC corporate
income tax laws, regulations and implementation
guidance notes, the statutory income tax rate
applicable to the group’s subsidiaries in Shenzhen
changes from 15% to 25% progressively within
five years from 1 January 2008 (2008: 18%; 2009:
20%; 2010: 22%; 2011: 24%; 2012: 25%). In
addition, a subsidiary located in Shenzhen is
entitled to enjoy a tax relief of 100% reduction in
the income tax rate for two years from 1 January
2007 and thereafter a 50% reduction in the

income tax rate for the following three years.

The group is subject to withholding tax at a rate of
10% (unless reduced by treaty) on distribution of
profits generated after 31 December 2007 from
the group’s foreign-invested enterprises in the
PRC. As all of the group’s foreign-invested
enterprises are directly and wholly owned by
Hong Kong incorporated subsidiaries, a reduced
rate of 5% is applicable in the calculation of this
withholding tax. Deferred tax liabilities of
$4,968,000 (2009: $3,127,000) have not been
recognised in respect of the tax that would be
payable on the distribution of these retained
profits since these earnings are not intended to be

distributed in the foreseeable future.
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6. SEBRBRRIITZAEBH (&) 6. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME
STATEMENT (continued)
by HEXHESEFNIRERRET (b)  Reconciliation between tax expense and
B8R : accounting profit at applicable tax rates:
—B-FF —EEIEF
2010 2009
Fr Fr
$000 $'000
BRE A Al Profit before taxation 63,262 27,380

REMBERBRAEZER Notional tax on profit before taxation,
EBRRANMWERBIETTE  calculated at the rates applicable to

BRBADER 2 B RHIE profits in the tax jurisdictions concerned 14,820 6,913
76 PR H2REEE  Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 810 1,392

BAFBBAZBBEE  Tax effect of non-taxable revenue (476) (568)
HEIMB AR BB EBE  Tax effect of the income tax holiday of

2R E a PRC subsidiary (3,826) (6,013)
MR TR R R E R 1 Tax effect of recognition of temporary

ER OB BEE differences not recognised previously (1,160) -
AEABBERZHRE Tax effect of tax losses not recognised,

FE NMRAEER net of utilisation during the year (591) 5,616

BAEE
TRMERMEERER  Tax effect of unrecognised deferred tax

EEMB 2 REZE arising from temporary differences 7 (83)
BESBENRMA—HZ  Effect on deferred tax balances at

EER B & 1 April resulting from changes in tax rates (6) (8)
DiEFERERR Under-provision in respect of prior years 15 74
BRHEXH Actual tax expense 9,593 7,323
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7. EEME 7o DIRECTORS” REMUNERATION
BEEEB (D READ) E161RIB2ES Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section
MewmT : 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as
follows:
M-
BER
ENER R
Salaries, ~ BETEA  FEIMER
E=HE  allowances Dis-  Retirement
Directors’ and henefits  cretionary scheme @zt
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
Tr Tr Tr Tr Tr
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
—B-2F 2010
HiTEE Executive directors
BRAA Chan Yum Kit = 5,792 = 12 5,804
®RIE Tsui How Kiu, Shirley = 3,691 = 12 3,703 77
#hER Chui Hing Yee = 2,287 70 12 2,369
BE® Chan Sze Chun = 983 60 12 1,055
BUFHTEE Independent non-executive
directors
REE Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 60 - - - 60
PN T Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 60 — — — 60
B Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 60 - - - 60
180 12,753 130 48 13,111
—2RAF 2009
HITEE Executive directors
REA Chan Yum Kit - 5,676 - 12 5,688
BRI Tsui How Kiu, Shirley - 3,726 = 12 3,738
HhER Chui Hing Yee = 1,951 70 12 2,033
BB % Chan Sze Chun - 944 60 12 1,016
BUEHTEE Independent non-executive
directors
REE Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 60 = = = 60
R Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 60 - - - 60
EMR Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 60 - - - 60
180 12,297 130 48 12,655
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7. ESMe (&) 7.
i ETEESERBEREUIBEARAA
BHe e BER-_ZF—ZFF=ZA=+—-HBF
EEERERERMRITEZBREZ
HECHNEEEREE(BRETE] -
B o

He  EHREBEYEINEREONESREMZ
BEELT#HREEY 2HEHRS2,1650007T
(Z=EZNHF :2,831,0007T) °

8. BEMSAL 6
NMI(ZEENEFE  NMu) BRaME AL H
Oy (ZEZAF  W0u) ESzMeE R
ME7EHFEE HBMu (ZEZENF

78 M) AT ZHERBWT :

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

In addition, certain directors were granted options to
subscribe for shares in the company. Details of the share
options granted and outstanding in respect of each
director as at 31 March 2010 are set out under the
section “Share option scheme” of the report of the
directors.

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind include an
amount of $2,165,000 (2009: $2,831,000) which
represents the market rental value of own land and
buildings provided to directors.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the six (2009: six) individuals with the highest
emoluments, four (2009: four) are directors whose
emoluments are disclosed in note 7. The aggregate of the
emoluments in respect of the other two (2009: two)

individuals are as follows:

—E2-ZF —ZEZhE

2010 2009

Fr Fr

$/000 $000

HFeRHEMEME Salaries and other emoluments 1,609 1,744
BISTEAL Discretionary bonuses 284 277
RRETEIARR Retirement scheme contributions 24 24
1,917 2,045

ZMAL(CE2EAEF WML MERSAL

The emoluments of the two (2009: two) individuals with

ZMEETHEER : the highest emoluments are within the following bands:
AE
Number of individuals
—B-FF —ZTNF
$ 2010 2009
Z - 1,000,0007T Nil - 1,000,000 1 1
1,000,001t — 1,500,0007T 1,000,001 - 1,500,000 1 1
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9. AATEZBRRELER 9. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY
ARAEERREGRAEFNBE -2 The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders
AR R BB KA AET,150,0007T (= of the company includes a loss of $1,150,000 (2009:
FZRE 1 971,00070) ZE518 o $971,000) which has been dealt with in the financial

statements of the company.

F SRR AR A R AN F E R 2 B R Reconciliation of the above amount to the company’s
profit for the year:

—B-FF —ETNF
2010 2009
Fr T
$’000 $'000
ENARRTUBERZ Amount of consolidated loss attributable to
BERRELGSEERE equity shareholders dealt with in 79
the company’s financial statements (1,150) (971)
RAFEEZE Dividends from a subsidiary approved
ZHBARRE during the year 60,000 60,000
RRARRER 2GR (M24(a))  Company’s profit for the year (note 24(a)) 58,850 59,029
RECHNBEBRNTARAREZRRKEZ Details of dividends paid and payable to equity
FHIEER M EE24(0) © shareholders of the company are set out in note 24(b).

MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE
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10. HttzmEWE 10.  OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Hit 2 HBE SRR 2BHBER Tax effects relating to each component of other
comprehensive income
—2-%F “ERHE
2010 2009

BR B A BB BRELAT BRBi &
£8  HERX ¢H &8 HBBE ¢ H

Before Before
tax Tax  Net-of-tax tax Tax  Net-of-tax
amount expense amount amount benefit amount

Tr Tr Tr T T T
$/000 $/000 $/000 $'000 §'000 §'000

BEFBEN Exchange differences
i) INGIlE S e on translation of
ZEREER financial
80 statements of
subsidiaries
outside Hong Kong 514 - 514 592 - 592
BRLHRESEY Surplus/(deficit) on

ZEGBER/ (B4) revaluation of
land and buildings

held for own use 58,519 (10,429) 48,090 (24,098) 3,704 (20,394)
Hir2m i Other comprehensive income 59,033 (10,429) 48,604 (23,506) 3,704 (19,802)
11. BRER 11.  EARNINGS PER SHARE
(@) BREAXREF (@) Basic earnings per share
BERERBRDREBEARAD R LERE The calculation of basic earnings per share is
B SR AG % 753,669,0007T (=& based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity
ZRF 120,057,0007T) REFEER shareholders of the company of $53,669,000
BITE B BB 282,030,000/ (= (2009: $20,057,000) and the number of
ZEZNF :282,030,0008%) 5T & © 282,030,000 (2009: 282,030,000) ordinary shares

in issue during the year.

MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE
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1. SKRAENGE) 11.  EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)
by EREBHERA (b)  Diluted earnings per share

HREEE BRI B EHELE The diluted earnings per share for the year ended
BE-_T—ZF=A=+—BL#TF 31 March 2010 is the same as the basic earnings
ENSRBEFREANNEHESRE per share as the potential ordinary shares are anti-
REFEF e dilutive.

BZE-_ZTTNF=HA=+—HLHF The calculation of diluted earnings per share for
EzB8RBEBRINDRELAAR 2 the year ended 31 March 2009 is based on the
& 18 5 IR 3R FE 45)% %120,057,000 profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders
TEBMEE#EEEIETERZ of the company of $20,057,000 and the number
FEFLERABECEBEBRHAUB of 282,155,957 ordinary shares after adjusting for
282,155,957t & » FHHWT : the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares,

calculated as follows:

EERZINE-FE (#5F) Weighted average number of ordinary shares
(diluted) 81

—EThF
R &E
2009
Number of

shares

R=ZA=+—BEBREEB Number of ordinary shares at 31 March 282,030,000
WRABRBEAAT ZERAE Effect of deemed issue of ordinary shares under
STEIRETEMBITEBR  the company’s share option scheme for nil

ZHE consideration 125,957
R=EA=+—HBEBREE Number of ordinary shares (diluted) at 31 March 282,155,957
(#58)

MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE
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12.

2R E

FEERBWEEEHEERK REQAEE
RETREEZAEABERUTEERR
HERRAZER - A5EEC2HT S
MEETERI B LELEIHEEE
BT Al 2325 &P e

(@)

EREBENREBHEEARRER
EOME -

EBRIEBERPRARERER
K@M RN PBE AR BMR
BEREEERMEREORME -

DEEE BEERAER
A D ARB K 2 B #BEIRM
FAREZESITRERAED
BUTEEEERETE/ROAE
h2EE BERRE:

ITHMEEREMEEREERRE
EE MHELEBBEERAMAT
BERN I HMEBEBREENES
BRIB - RO M HERHEEED RS
ZESTER 2 MEREE 2R
BERABEE HELEHEAS
BRI

12.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The group manages its businesses by geography. In a

manner consistent with the way in which information is

reported internally to the group’s most senior executive

management for the purposes of resource allocation and

performance assessment, the group has presented the

following two reportable segments. No operating

segments have been aggregated to form the following

reportable segments.

(@)

The Hong Kong operation represents the sales of

house brands and imported brands in Hong Kong.

The outside Hong Kong operation represents the
manufacture of house brands in Mainland China
and sales of house brands and imported brands in

Mainland China, Macau and Taiwan.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the group’s senior executive
management monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment

on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets and
current assets with the exception of deferred tax
assets and other corporate assets. Segment
liabilities include trade creditors, accruals
attributable to the manufacturing and sales
activities of the individual segments and bank
borrowings managed directly by the segments and
current liabilities with the exception of deferred

tax liabilities.

MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE
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Annual Report 2010 4E 44t

B 785 A

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 5 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

12.  SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(@)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)
Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to sales
generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments or which otherwise
arise from the depreciation or amortisation of
assets attributable to those segments. However,
assistance provided by one segment to another,

including sharing of assets, is not measured.

The measure used for reportable segment profit or
loss is profit/(loss) from operations. Taxation
charge/(credit) is not allocated to reportable

segments.

The accounting policies of the reportable
segments are the same as the group’s accounting

policies described in note 1.
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12. DEEE (H) 12.  SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(@ IHXE -EEREEGE) (@  Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)
BE_ZE-—Z2ER_ZBAFZ=A Information regarding the group’s reportable
=t+t-BLFE FEOAXEEER segments as provided to the group’s most senior
BITREEBEAESRHEUIBERR executive management for the purposes of
FEDBRBE2AEERETERD resource allocation and assessment of segment
W2EREIMT : performance for the years ended 31 March 2010

and 20009 is set out below:

B EREN @t
Hong Kong Outside Hong Kong Total
ZE-BF ZETNE CZET-%F ZEEINE ZE-2F ZEERNF
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
r r r r T r
$'000 §'000 $'000 §'000 $/000 §'000
84 AREPE Revenue from external customers 24,820 232444 214779 190,644 439599 423,088
ARERE Inter-segment revenue - = - . - _
AF2HABUE  Reportable segment revenue 224820 232444 24779 190644 439599 423,088
BTEHAPEA  Reportable segment profit 26,812 4,679 30,008 17,756 56,820 22,435
B ZFEHA  Interest income from bank deposits 162 331 278 556 440 867
FER% Interest expense 3 (141) - - 3) (141)
FRirEREE Depreciation and amortisation
for the year (8,937) (9,891)  (12216) (13342  Q1,153)  (23,233)
THRERE Impairment of
- BWER - trade receivables - - - (195) - (195)
-BREE ~ fixed assets (719) = - = (719) -
BT2HSWEE  Reportable segment assets 207,837 189,167 155,371 142,197 363,208 331,364
(BENEERRE  (including investment in
ZRE) a jointly controlled entity) 326 - - - 326 -
EREMZERD  Additions to non-current segment
PHEE assets during the year 4,493 5,036 7,096 10,226 11,589 15,262
BTEHAPEE  Reportable segment liabilities 31,849 30,724 21,348 18,783 53,197 49,507
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12. 7 ERE|E (&) 12.  SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
b)) AFEBRIPERZ BEEREEZ (b)  Reconciliation of reportable segment profit or
HER loss, assets and liabilities
—2-%F e
2010 2009
T T
$’000 $000
A Profit
AT E2HDEER Reportable segment profit 56,820 22,435
Hilh sz R WA F 58 Other revenue and net income 1,186 5,467
B R AN Finance costs 3) (141)
T REBEY UK Net valuation gains/(losses) on land and
REWEZHE buildings and investment properties 5,349 (381)
W, (B18) $HE
BihEELRAIZER Share of losses of a jointly controlled entity (90) - 85
BB AR ERF Consolidated profit before taxation 63,262 27,380
BE Assets
ATEHRIPEE Reportable segment assets 363,208 331,364
REREEE Deferred tax assets 5,258 3,002
ROBARESER AT Unallocated head office and
&E corporate assets 193,238 118,684
REEE#AE Consolidated total assets 561,704 453,050
afE Liabilities
ATEHIHEE Reportable segment liabilities 53,197 49,507
BB IEEE Current tax liabilities 6,393 4,194
EERIEEE Deferred tax liabilities 27,168 15,395
mEBERE Consolidated total liabilities 86,758 69,096
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12. ZBE/SE (A) 12.  SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(0 HBEHEH (c)  Geographic information
TREJIERAONEEBIRETF W The following table sets out information about the
#: RINAEEEEEERSE D geographical location of (i) the group’s revenue
A(EEFRBEE]) 2HEBENUE from external customers and (ii) the group’s fixed
ER -FEFZ2HBEUNEREBERM assets, and a jointly controlled entity (“specified
BRESIRNERMZUEEE -EE non-current assets”). The geographical location of
FRBEEZHBUENREEE customers is based on the location at which the
BBV E (BY* - BERRKRME) services were provided or the goods delivered.
R (HBREE DR 2 ) The geographical location of the specified non-
MmEE ° current assets is based on the physical location of
the asset, in the case of property, plant and
equipment, and the location of operations, in the
case of interest in a jointly controlled entity.
HREF 2 W& EEFRBEE
86 Revenues from Specified
external customers non-current assets
—E-EF ZEZTNF ZE-FF IZETIhE
2010 2009 2010 2009
Fr Fr Fr Fr
$’000 $000 $000 $000
o Hong Kong 224,820 232,444 202,536 154,093
R KB Mainland China 174,385 160,528 63,100 57,984
=34 Taiwan 25,720 17,079 1,379 1,026
B Macau 14,674 13,037 1,283 1,753
214,779 190,644 65,762 60,763
439,599 423,088 268,298 214,856
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13. BEE&EE 13.  FIXED ASSETS
(@) AEE (@  The group
& B
RE EER
BAERE
NARESE kAZE
BEARZ Furniture,
THREEY fixtures,
landand ~ IXXE  computer
buildings R#EH  andoffice  HENE
held for own Plant  equipment %8 RENE
use carried and  and motor Leasehold Mgt Investment @zt
at fair value  machinery vehicles improvements  Sub-total properties Total
i r r r r r r
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 §'000 $'000
HASEE Cost or valuation:
RZZEN\EMA-A At 1 April 2008 198,920 5,891 19,578 36,433 260,822 16,020 276,842
EXHRE Exchange adjustments 732 88 84 130 1,034 - 1,034
BE Additions - 232 1,396 13,634 15,262 - 15,262
HE Disposals - - (1,261) (7,6605) (8,926) - (8,926)
EfE4 Deficit on revaluation (24,279) - - - (4279 - (4279 87
W ZSREYE Less: Elimination of accumulated
depreciation (4,953) - - - (4,953) - (4,953)
MMERE Fair value adjustment - - - - - (200) (200)
WIZEAE=A=+—H  At31 March 2009 170,420 6,211 19,797 42,532 238,960 15,820 254,780
fix: Representing:
A Cost - 6,211 19,797 42,53 68,540 - 68,540
fHE-ZZENE Valuation - 2009 170,420 - - - 170,420 15,820 186,240
170,420 6,211 19,797 42,532 238,960 15,820 254,780
RZBEAEMA-A At 1 April 2009 170,420 6,211 19,797 42,532 238,960 15,820 254,780
EfRE Exchange adjustments 309 - 13 117 439 - 439
EE Additions - - 2,987 8,602 11,589 - 11,589
HE Disposals - - (125) (10,122) (10,247) - (10,247)
EftBH Surplus on revaluation 59,468 = = - 59,468 - 59,468
B RHTEHS Less: Elimination of accumulated
depreciation (4,397) - - - (4,397) - (4,397)
NABRE Fair value adjustment - - - = = 4,400 4,400
RZB-ZE=F=1-H At31 March 2010 225,800 6,211 22,672 41,129 295,812 20,220 316,032
& Representing:
A Cost - 6,211 22,672 41,129 70,012 - 70,012
ftE-—5-%% Valuation - 2010 225,800 - - - 225,800 20,220 246,020
225,800 6,211 22,672 41,129 295,812 20,220 316,032

MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE



Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% 5 b4k B A FR A 7

S 785 A

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

13. EBEEEE (&) 13.  FIXED ASSETS (continued)
(@ AER#E) (@  The group (continued)
i BR
£8 EREK
BAEEE
NARETR RAE
BEERZ Furniture,
THREEY fixtures,

landand ~ IXXE  computer
buildings R#EH  andofice  HENE

held for own Plant  equipment %8 RENE
use carried and  and motor Leasehold /NGt Investment &zt
at fair value  machinery vehicles improvements ~ Sub-total  properties Total
r r Tr r T r i
$'000 $'000 $'000 §'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
R ERAE: Accumulated depreciation and
impairment:
R-ZE/\EMA-A AT April 2008 = 2,748 11,518 15,645 29,911 - 29911
EREE Exchange adjustments - 21 32 38 91 - 91
AEERE Charge for the year 4953 380 2811 15000 23233 - B3
88 HEREE Written back on disposal - - (900) (7,458) (8,358) - (8,358)
EfhHH Elimination on revaluation (4,953) - = = (4,953) = (4,953)
RZZEAEZA=+-8  At31 March 2009 - 3,149 13,461 23314 39,924 - 39,924
RZZEZHERA-A At 1 April 2009 - 3,149 13,461 23,314 39,924 - 39,924
ERAE Exchange adjustments - - 11 03 74 - 74
KEEHE Charge for the year 4,397 387 2,384 13,985 21,153 - 21,153
HEFE Impairment losses - - - 719 719 - 719
HEREE Written back on disposal - - (120) (9,293) (9,413) = (9,413)
i HH Elimination on revaluation (4,397) - - - (4397) - (4397)
RZZ-BFZA=+-R  A31 March 2010 - 3,536 15,736 28,788 48,060 - 48,060
RERFE: Net book value:
WZB-ZE=F=1-H At31 March 2010 225,800 2,675 6,936 12,341 247,752 20,220 267,972
RZBBAE=A=1-H  At31 March 2009 170,420 3,062 6,336 19218 199,036 15820 214,85
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(b)

(c)

(d)
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WEEE

R-ZZ2-—ZF ETREELEEN
HEFE BrEHEEEEE
HEBE Bt E=ECE/EE
EEEEZANBERE MEBEE
EZRHEEC #MR719,0007T (5F A
[{TERAZ IA) o AU EI K IE DR 1B
DEEEMRBRREeELESE N
EABEME -

R=ZZF-ZH=A=+—-H &K%
BRENEULSEHRERHRA
BAEH2FHRHSWAERBTHEZ
NEHEREEETEM - HEMR
B MEQIRAHEERTARLE (K
BREBREBUBMBESEEEZE8
T3 34 {2 74 P 1 (B 10 3% 3 B % 28 R
BRI 2R ET -

R=ZE-ZF=A=+—-H ' &Xx&
EEFER2 TR EEYET
Eff -EMUEELRBELSER
CBEMEREZ2THERSBERIER
AFETERAEE - HETHRER
TERAR (HEVRFAEEDE
i B 48 BB B 2 R BR) EAT o
BE—_Z-ZTHE=-F=+—-HLHF
B REMBEREEE59,468,0007T
—ZEZNFE : E424,279,0007T)
58,519,000 (=TT R &F :
24,098,000t ) & 40 bR IE i FT 15 B
(FEE23(b)) R = B 14 & & (KT
FE10) » 2R 949,000T (ZFF
HE EA181,000T) B REREE
mRT AR o
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13. FIXED ASSETS (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Impairment losses

In 2010, certain cash generating units recorded
losses which indicate the related fixed assets
might have been impaired. As a result, the
directors reviewed the recoverable amount of the
relevant fixed assets and the carrying amount of
such assets was written down by $719,000
(included in “Administrative Expenses”). The
estimates of recoverable amount were based on
value in use of the cash generating units to which

these assets belong.

The group’s investment properties were revalued
as at 31 March 2010 on an open market value
basis calculated by reference to net rental income
allowing for reversionary income potential. The
valuations were carried out by an independent
firm of surveyors, DTZ Debenham Tie Leung
Limited, who have among their staff members of
the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent
experience in the location and category of

property being valued.

The group’s land and buildings held for own use
were revalued at 31 March 2010 at their open
market values by the direct comparison approach
by reference to recent market transactions in
comparable properties. The valuations were also
carried out by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited
who has recent experience in the location and
category of property being valued. Out of the total
revaluation surplus of $59,468,000 (2009: deficit
of $24,279,000), $58,519,000 (2009:
$24,098,000) has been transferred to the
revaluation reserve (note 10), net of deferred tax
(note 23(b)) and a surplus of $949,000 (2009:
deficit of $181,000) has been credited/charged to
the consolidated income statement for the year
ended 31 March 2010.
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13. BEE&EE &) 13.  FIXED ASSETS (continued)
d) (&) (d  (continued)
fid LRFFEER 2L REEY Had the above land and buildings held for own
EERABRFTIEINR R= use been carried at cost less accumulated
E-ZFE=-A=Z+-BzKkEE depreciation, the carrying amounts would have
1% %78,791,000c(ZEF N F : been $78,791,000 (2009: $80,835,000) at 31
80,835,0007T) ° March 2010.
(e WMEZEREFESNWT : ()  The analysis of net book value of properties is as
follows:
KEE
The group
—E-2F ZEEIEF
2010 2009
Fr Fr
90 $000 $/000
REHE In Hong Kong
-REEE — Long leases 68,020 54,340
—HhHHEE — Medium-term leases 123,400 86,500
—EHHE — Short leases 3,300 2,300
BHBEH Outside Hong Kong
-RPESE — Long leases 7,296 6,200
—HHEE — Medium-term leases 44,004 36,900
246,020 186,240
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FERBELHAERAANFERE
MEERZNERBRRENE -

AEBRKEHERARRENE -
HERE-ROSRP—FE=F
3 7Y 7 A B B R R T B IR R
H-HENRBEEFSEFRHE
URBmERS RELEHEHEY
TasmREREE-

FEERTURBRNEEHEEEH
BREUNSEEASESRABENT :

13.
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FIXED ASSETS (continued)

(f)

Fixed assets leased out under operating leases
All properties held under operating leases that
would otherwise meet the definition of investment
property are classified as investment property.

The group leases out investment properties under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an
initial period of one to three years, with an option
to renew the lease after that date at which time all
terms are renegotiated. Lease payments are
usually adjusted annually to reflect market rentals.
None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

The group’s total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are

receivable as follows:

—Z2-2F ZEEBhEF
2010 2009
Tr T
$’000 $000
—FR Within 1 year 917 146
—FREIFR After 1 year but within 5 years 1,056 130
1,973 276
14, REBADZER 14.  INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES
b NN

The company
—Z2-2F ZEENF
2010 2009
Fr Tr
$’000 $000
FEEMBR 0 BRAE Unlisted shares, at cost 61,672 61,672
FE WL B A B FRIE Amount due from a subsidiary 191,794 126,545
253,466 188,217

MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE
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14. RHEBAT 2R (/&) 14. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
EUHERABREAERR 2R REE Amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured, interest free
EERY HEBITERNEERE-—FR and has no fixed terms of repayment but is not expected
Y o to be recovered within one year from the balance sheet

date.
UTRAHAEEXE EEREFREKR The following list contains the particulars of all the
HECHMBEWBARZHB BREBEEH subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets
I FBEZRDBEAEBER - or liabilities of the group. The class of shares held is

ordinary unless otherwise stated.

ERTRAR
B/ R
BRzRE HRERLH
Particulars Proportion of ownership interest
SRR of issued and g
92 REEHY fully paid-up ~ EMEH A27  KEAR
Place of share/ Group's 58 58 TEXEK
NRER incorporation registered effective  Held by the Held by a Principal
Name of company and operation capital interest company subsidiary activity
Moiselle (BVI) Limited * REABREE  2000RBREEIXT 100% 100% - REEZR
British Virgin 2,000 shares Investment
Islands of US$1each holding
Always Profit Holdings REEFRRE IREEET 100% = 100% REZR
Limited * British Virgin 1 share of HK$1 Investment
Islands holding
EEBRAT & 100RBREEIER 100% - 100%  EFBIAREFR
Beautirich Limited Hong Kong 100 shares [
of HK$1 each Trading of

fashion apparel

and accessories
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14. RMBRRZER (&) 14.  INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
BRTRAR
BA/ &R
BRzRE HRERLA
Particulars Proportion of ownership interest
B 32 of issued and KEM
RBEHH fully paid-up BERER NG| it B 2 =
Place of share/ Group's 55 58 FTEXK
ARER incorporation registered effective  Held by the Held by a Principal
Name of company and operation capital interest company subsidiary activity
EHBENERRAT ) BEERRR 100% - 100%  MRRER
Boo Gie Garment Hong Kong 200,000/ LIESSEC]
Factory Limited BREABEIBIZERR Sourcing of
1,800,001 % materials and
SREEER property
Deferred non-voting holding 93

200,000 shares
of HK$1 each
Ordinary
1,800,001 shares
of HK$1 each

EHREBRAA ) RERERIBT 100% - 100% RELZR
Boogie Holdings Limited Hong Kong 2 shares of HK§1 each Investment
holding

BE(ER)ERAF BE ARSRERIER 100% - 100%  EiERER
Bright Star (HK) Limited Hong Kong 4 shares of HK$1 each (=
Trading of

fashion apparel

and accessories

REERERAR i UREREEIET 100% - 100% REZR
Busy Win International Hong Kong 2 shares of HK$1 each Investment
Limited holding
REESERAT &8 1000RBREEER 100% - 100% REEZR
Eastasia Plaza Limited Hong Kong 1,000 shares Investment
of HK$1 each holding

MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE
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14, REBRR 2D (&)

14. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

ERTRAR
B/ R
BRzRHE HRERLH
Particulars Proportion of ownership interest
SRR of issued and AEE
REBEHE fully paid-up BRER PN WEAR
Place of share/ Group's 58 58 FTEXEK
NRER incorporation registered effective  Held by the Held by a Principal
Name of company and operation capital interest company subsidiary activity
Euro Legend Assets KRAERRES IREBEIET 100% - 100% REZR
Limited * British Virgin 1 share of US$1 Investment
Islands holding
ERBRAT & 100RBREEIERT 100% - 100% RELZR
94 Fortress Power Limited Hong Kong 100 shares Investment
of HK$1 each holding
tEERERAR BE 300,000 100% - 100%  BEHHRE
Grand Bridge Hong Kong BREE1ET R B
International Limited 300,000 shares Retail of
of HK$1 each fashion
apparel and
accessories
AERERBRLA BE RBRERIBT 100% - 100% REER
iMaroon International Hong Kong 2 shares of HK$1 each Investment
Company Limited holding
WERERRLA B 10000k BREEIBT 100% - 100% ESSLC
Landwin Investments Hong Kong 10,000 shares Property
Limited of HK$1 each holding
mat (BB)BRAF 3 500,000 100% - 100%  SEERHRE
Moiselle (Hong Kong) Hong Kong BREEIER R B
Limited 500,000 shares Retail of
of HK$1 each fashion
apparel and

MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE
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14. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

BRTRARE
B/
BAZHE RERZLA
Particulars Proportion of ownership interest
ERT A of issued and XEH
RIBEHH fully paid-up BERER NG| it B 2 =
Place of share/ Group’s BE 5B TEEH
ARER incorporation registered effective  Held by the Held by a Principal
Name of company and operation capital interest company subsidiary activity
RREBRARLF Ei# RBREEIER 100% - 100% REER
Moiselle International Hong Kong 2 shares of HK§1 each Investment
Limited holding
ZSHRDT’ RBERRES TREBEIET 100% - 100% BERHRES
Onexcel Limited * British Virgin 1 share of USS1 KBt
Islands Retail of
fashion
apparel and
accessories
BERRERRAT B8 500,0008% 100% - 100%  ZERERE
Pearl Jade Investments Hong Kong BREGIET REEH
Limited 500,000 shares Retail of
of HK$1 each fashion
apparel and
accessories
BREEBRARAF Bi# 4,000 100% - 100% SERERH
Perfect National Hong Kong SREEIET R Et
International Limited 4,000 shares Retail of
of HK$1 each fashion
apparel and
accessories
BEERAR’ REBEBREE TREEIET 100% - 100% REER
Profair Limited * British Virgin 1 share of US$1 Investment
Islands holding

MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE
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14. MK EATI 2R (&) 14.  INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
BRTRAR
B/
BAZFHE RERG LA
Particulars Proportion of ownership interest
A of issued and KEMH
REBEHE fully paid-up BERER PN WEAR

Place of share/ Group’s o2 5B TEEH
ARER incorporation registered effective  Held by the Held by a Principal
Name of company and operation capital interest company subsidiary activity
BERRARLF B REBREEIER 100% - 100% SERERH
Regal Dragon Hong Kong 2 shares of HK$1 each R EH
Development Limited Retail of
fashion
apparel and
96 accessories
BERERRAT BE  1,000RBREEIET 100% - 100% NEER
Shirley Investments Hong Kong 1,000 shares Property
Limited of HK$1 each holding
RHRERRAF BB ARBREEIER 100% - 100% REER
Sky Well Investment Hong Kong 4 shares of HK$1 each Investment
Limited holding
HERARDR KBAAREE 10000RBREBIZT 100% - 100% REEZR
Sosuccess Limited * British Virgin 10,000 shares Investment
Islands of US$1 each holding
RERBRERLF RBERREE TREEIXT 100% - 100% REER
Timepro International British Virgin 1 share Investment
Limited * Islands of US$1 holding
HERBRARAR’ B AMER 100% - 100%  TERHRE
Treasure Light Fashion Macau 25,0002 7t R B8
Limited * Registered capital Retail of
MOP25,000 fashion apparel

and accessories
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14. MRHEBAB Z2#Ez= (&) 14. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
BRTRARE
B&x
BAZHE FEERLA
Particulars Proportion of ownership interest
1 B 3L of issued and r5H
REEEHE fully paid-up ERER N Wit B 2 B
Place of share/ Group's A A TEEH
EEE incorporation registered effective  Held by the Held by a Principal
Name of company and operation capital interest company subsidiary activity
RHREBRAT Bi# MREREENER 100% - 100% REZR
United Sino Investment Hong Kong 2 shares of HK$1 each Investment
Limited holding
BEBIERAR 5B 500,0008% 100% = 100% B 1o AR B J%
Viewgood Overseas Hong Kong BREEIER Tt E 5
Limited 500,000 shares Trading of
of HK$1 each fashion apparel 97
and accessories
REHER (RN BERAT hE  EfEAR2,100,000% T 100% - 100% B
Ming Fung Garment The PRC Registered capital Manufacturing
Manufacturing (Shenzhen) HK$2,100,000 of garments

Company Limited **

wEEX (R ERAF ¢ mE  FEMEAS 400,0008 T 100% - 100% REHK
Yubao Fashionable Dress The PRC Registered capital Manufacturing
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. ** HK$8,400,000 of garments
RYESHRYBBRAT PE EMEX 100% - 100% He B B e
Shenzhen Baozhuo Fashion The PRC AR#500,00070 R &6 5 B &
Wholesale Co., Ltd. ¥ Registered capital Wholesale of
RMB500,000 fashion apparel

and accessories

RIEXHRTERERAT 7 HE HfER 100% - 100%  FEEERH
Shen Zhen Graceful Fashion The PRC AR #2000,0007T e
Retail Limited Company ** Registered capital Retail of
RMB2,000,000 fashion apparel

and accessories

* BIEFEEPIEM Z BB E R - *  These are wholly-owned foreign investment enterprises
registered under the laws of the PRC.
: EFREMMEEMUFZENAZ : KPMG are not statutory auditors of these companies.
SETERZ BN o
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15. REEQATZHEZR 15. INTEREST IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY
r&EE
The group
—g-8F  —IEAF
2010 2009
Fr Fr
$7000 $7000
EREE A RIFRIEA Amount due from a jointly controlled entity 416 -
EhaEFE Share of net liabilities (90) -
326 -
REBREE AT ZERFBUOT : Details of the group’s interest in the jointly controlled
entity are as follows:
98
RERGLLA
BETR Proportion of ownership interest
5% EMHEIR  BEREFHE xEE
REEA Ken Particulars BRER
REAREH Form of Place of of issued Group’'s ZAARKE WEARKE FTEER
Name of jointly business incorporation and paid effective  Held by the Held by a Principal
controlled entity structure and operation up capital interest company subsidiary activity
Sequoia HK, B BB 1008 50% - 50%  BEREREH
Limited Incorporated Hong Kong BREE1ET R B
100 shares Retail of
of HK$1 each fashion
apparel and

MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE
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15. MNEERTz2RER (& 15. INTEREST IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY
(continued)
BERRACHBENBE-AEEBERE Summary financial information on the jointly
! controlled entity — group’s effective interest:
—E-FF —EENF
2010 2009
Fr Fr
$’000 $000
FRBEE Non-current assets 124 -
REBEE Current assets 292 -
REEE Current liabilities (506) -
BEFE Net liabilities (90) -
e
A Income 32 -
X Expenses (122) -
HBrEE Loss for the period (90) =
16. Hft&E 16.  OTHER ASSETS
HihEEEHAS AHZREREMRS Other assets represent rental, utility and other deposits
AHAREE B —FRKE - which are expected to be recovered after one year from

the balance sheet date.
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17. =& 17.  INVENTORIES
() REEEEABRZEFEERE (@) Inventories in the consolidated balance sheet
comprise:
rEE
The group

—E-2F —EEIEF

2010 2009

T Fr

$’000 $000

R Raw materials 7,025 9,763

ERm Work in progress 1,961 1,586

SUR M Finished goods 46,611 62,000

55,597 73,349

100
(b)y ERRAZAFABRZFELSHE (b)  The analysis of the amount of inventories
2T recognised as an expense and included in profit
or loss is as follows:
rEE
The group

—E-FF ZETNEF

2010 2009

T T

$/000 $000

EE8REE Carrying amount of inventories sold 81,983 89,632

MHFE Write down of inventories 3,566 10,466

85,549 100,098
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18. BEWEZR HiEWRR 18.  TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
rEE PN
The group The company
—e-%F C—BENF —%-¥F —BBNF
2010 2009 2010 2009
Fr T T Fr
$’000 $000 $'000 $000
B 5 U IRR Trade debtors 19,305 19,763 - -
o SRR Less: allowance for doubtful
(Ktat18(b)) debts (note 18(b)) (250) (250) - -
19,055 19,513 - —
U ARIFIE  Amount due from a subsidiary - = 10,000 28,000
&~ BFIER  Deposits, prepayments and
H i FE UL FX other receivables 30,425 27,672 109 109
101
49,480 47,185 10,109 28,109
Fir 78 FE UK BR 3% R H {th BE WX R (B2 5 FE U M B All of the trade and other receivables (including amount
ANBZHB)FEHBER —ERBEHER S due from a subsidiary) are expected to be recovered or
X e recognised as expenses within one year.
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18. EWERFEREMEWT (&) 18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
(@ REDT (@  Ageing analysis
BURERREMGENGEEE S E Included in trade and other receivables are trade
WERFR (MNBRRERBE) REER 2 debtors (net of allowance for doubtful debts) with
SREQDMTUT : the following ageing analysis as of the balance
sheet date:
r&EE
The group
—B-FF ZEEAEF
2010 2009
Fr T
$'000 $000
REBHRB R Outstanding balances aged:

102 308/ Within 30 days 16,001 16,060
31HZE90H Between 31 to 90 days 2,351 2,700
91E£180H Between 91 to 180 days 321 752
181 HZE365H Between 181 to 365 days 382 1

19,055 19,513
BESRWERRBEEZEBHEI0E Trade debtors are due within 30 to 90 days from
WHEH FAEBEBFERK 2E - the date of billing. Further details on the group’s
SHEBHEHNMEE25() © credit policy are set out in 25(a).
by EZEWRNRZBE (b)  Impairment of trade debtors

B 5 B W AR TR < R (E 5 18 DA B BR Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors are
B RIEAEEEMREDEE recorded using an allowance account unless the
MIENAREERR  EEBERT group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is
BB 18 B B B 5 R U AR RO 8H remote, in which case the impairment loss is
(RHEE1(h)G)) ° written off against trade debtors directly (see note

1(h)(i).
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18. EWERFREMEWR (Z) 18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

b) EBEIZERWERNRZEEGE) (b)  Impairment of trade debtors (continued)
REBERFRAZEZEH (BEEER The movements in the allowance for doubtful
SREBEN)WT : debts during the year, including both specific and

collective loss components, are as follows:

rEE
The group
—E-BF —EZhEF
2010 2009
Fr Fr
$/000 $000
ROUB—H At 1 April 250 468
RREE R Impairment losses recognised - 195
Hi58 1 BT YR B 7R IE Uncollectible amounts written off - (413)
103
R=R=+—-H At 31 March 250 250
R=ZZB-—Z2F=ZA=+—-H X&§ At 31 March 2010, the group’s trade debtors of
B2 E 5 ERERR250,0007T (= $250,000 (2009: $250,000) were individually
TERF :250,0007t) E 18 Bl #E E determined to be impaired. The individually
F IR B o {7 B R B FE W BR R D ER impaired receivables relate to customers that were
M A#EEFHRE  YEBAR in financial difficulties and specific allowances for
RIS ER#E250,000c(—ZEENEF . doubtful debts of $250,000 (2009: $250,000)
250,0007T) ° AN 5 B I 5 5% 5 4 were recognised. The group does not hold any
BRIFAEMIERR - collateral over these balances.
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18. EWERFRHMEWR (Z) 18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
(0 YEEBEZEZEWRER (¢)  Trade debtors that are not impaired
TEENSLEEBRBEAREZE S The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are
FEWERRZREDMAT ¢ neither individually nor collectively considered to

be impaired are as follows:

rHRE
The group
—g-3F  —ITAF
2010 2009
T T
$000 $'000
W EEEA S RE Neither past due nor impaired 16,001 16,060
B R30H Less than 30 days past due 2,209 2,620
104 B3 1B ZE90R 31 to 90 days past due 482 832
BHE91HZE180H 91 to 180 days past due 172 1
BH181HZE365H 181 to 365 days past due 191 -
3,054 3,453
19,055 19,513
WEBPHBEZERERES R Receivables that were neither past due nor
MU EENCHEZEREE ° impaired relate to a wide range of customers for

whom there was no recent history of default.

B8 BB ROBME 2 FE W iR R T B — Receivables that were past due but not impaired
HEXAEBERFRZRE LB relate to a number of independent customers that
EFER - AREEEZIEEX have a good track record with the group. Based
EERERDABRETLUTE R on past experience, management believes that no
B REBEKER EEEMEEL impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
BULERZSERELRERE - these balances as there has not been a significant
AEBI B ZEFEHFHEME change in credit quality and the balances are still
e considered fully recoverable. The group does not

hold any collateral over these balances.
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19. RERELEEY 19.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
@ HRERASZEYEE: (@  Cash and cash equivalents comprise:
X&EE LN
The group The company
—E-ZE ZETNF CZE-BFf CEZTNE
2010 2009 2010 2009
Fr T T T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BITER Deposits with banks
~FHAR=MEA - Within three months to
e R maturity when placed 66,145 52,804 - =
~ZHBE®=MEA - More than three months to
#EIH maturity when placed 47,955 - - =
RITFRREAE Cash at bank and in hand 56,040 47,628 896 244
REEBBRZREE Cash and cash equivalents 105
RREEEN in the balance sheets 170,140 100,432 896 244

W FHALZM@A Less: Deposits with bank with

Cx):tpd more than three months to
BITERK maturity when placed (47,955) -
RGERERE Cash and cash equivalents
ZHEREE in the consolidated cash
ZEY flow statement 122,185 100,432
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19. HERREEEY (&) 19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)
b)) KREAGHNEREXBMELEZR (b)  Reconciliation of profit before taxation to
BZHER: cash generated from operations:
—E-BF —EENF
2010 2009
Fr Fr
$/000 $000
R AR Profit before taxation 63,262 27,380
M TIMEL TR Adjustments for:
— L REBEYLARIZE - Net valuation (gains)/losses on land
MEZHE R/ and buildings and investment
B8 FE properties (5,349) 381
—iE — Depreciation 21,153 23,233
—BEEERERE — Impairment losses on fixed assets 719 -
106 —FEBX ~ Interest expense 3 141
—FBURA — Interest income (440) (887)
-HERTEEEZ ~ Net loss/(gain) on disposal of 578 (37)
B (k&) F8 fixed assets
—-BRAEBHFZEEHK — Net realised and unrealised losses
REREIRFE on equity securities - 14
-EiEEEDRZ ~ Share of losses of a jointly controlled
g entity 90 -
-EREE (k) — Foreign exchange loss/(gain) 6 (1,441)
EEETHEY Changes in working capital:
- HihEERD — Decrease in other assets 1,297 6,293
—-FERED — Decrease in inventories 17,752 11,027
-EREENT — Increase in amount due from a jointly
FIEE 0 controlled entity (416) -
—EWER R HMEWF - (Increase)/decrease in trade and other
(gm) /®D receivables (2,295) 8,841
—ENIRRREMEMNT - Decrease/(increase) in trade and other
B () payables 3,690 (10,702)
REEBELEZRE Cash generated from operations 100,050 64,243
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20. ENERARHEMEMSK 20.  TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
REH RATH
The group The company
“E-BF TTNF C—B-BF ZTTNF
2010 2009 2010 2009
Fr T T Fr
$7000 $'000 $000 $’000
FEASBR AR Trade payables 6,497 4,282 - -
Hi BN RIER Other creditors and accrued
EtER charges 46,700 45,225 2,069 1,737
53,197 49,507 2,069 1,737
FEHAMEENERERREMEMNTRE AR — All of the trade and other payables are expected
FREE - to be settled within one year. 107
EBHERFIREMESREFEEZE ZEMERER Included in trade and other payables are trade
REERZEREBE2MWOT @ creditors with the following ageing analysis as of

the balance sheet date:

FEE

The group
—E-BF “EZhEF
2010 2009
Fr Fr
$’000 $'000

REBERE 2 R Outstanding balances aged:

30HA Within 30 days 3,328 3,441
31B£90H Between 31 to 90 days 2,776 353
H#iB90H Over 90 days 393 488
6,497 4,282
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21.

EERKER

(@)

AEBEREEBCGRFIELARE 25
RO HREB(ERKEL) S8
HERNEAZEEHTARAFIEAE
258 ((REETED - BESS
EEBBUSTACECRAEHRRK
BRIRGHE - RIEBRELHE B
REEREREEBHWAZ5%M
ZitER BESAEERA LR
#20,0007C o MBS T E 2 AT
BRI o

MEZKEARE 2B S BRT
EBECRERUTE HEWB L
AARTEREEREFE2ETE
Et @zt R - HRTDEE
B

REEBEEXBEZHBARAZES
ERESHBHL TRARESHKAEE
ZREMRKFE -WBLARAEAKS
HAEHRNRFEZRERAEHFER
BZo%HR  BRAMRRERRSET
R ZBARKERFA -

MR EE S AKE XN EEMER

BERABANIRZHMBERESE -

RERRTEZHRREERFTTA
BEA -

21.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

(a)

The group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
scheme (the “MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
scheme is a defined contribution retirement
scheme administered by independent trustees.
Under the MPF scheme, the employer and
its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap
of monthly relevant income of $20,000.

Contributions to the MPF scheme vest immediately.

The subsidiaries in the PRC participate in a
defined contribution scheme organised by the
local government. These subsidiaries are required
to make contributions at certain prescribed rates
of the relevant PRC employees’ salaries to the
scheme. Contributions to the scheme vest

immediately.

Employees of the subsidiary carrying on business
in Taiwan have chosen to participate in a defined
contribution scheme governed by the Labour
Pension Act. The subsidiary contributes at 6% of
the total salaries of the participating employees
that choose to participate in the defined
contribution scheme, the contribution deposited
into individual pension accounts at the Bureau of

Labour Insurance.

Save as set out above, the group has no other
material obligations to make payments in respect

of retirement benefits of the employees.

Contributions to the defined contribution scheme

are charged to profit or loss when incurred.
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RARR-BE-_F-_A-THRARM—
HEREB(TZEE])  EAAFAARY
BRETHEEZZHE - FERREHET
SEELHEMcBBRREE - AT BB K
MEHBEEN YRTFRAFTR -

REZFE  ARAESERETHED
FAALRAXEEAMBARD Z2HES
THAEHEABE (BEES) EMFS
HREBEHAEBEETERMZHER %8
BE AEERERAREBREUZIBE
NRAESEMEEHE A DAHTRS -
REFEMBRER  ARAZQAD A XN
T.OOLERERBREZNKE-

BREZTEEAROZEE REEE
ARODRBEXA 2B mERLRERL A
AAERS ARDRBER Tz FHIWHE
(UBEBERE) -

BRERTEALEEFE 2REHE
MERETRREERESHESOERE
BREFAEAAG ZHRATE  HEZBR
TERBEBERERHEMETF TF-8
NERESGETHEEARAURBE-R
BB ©
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EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS

The company has a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
which was adopted on 25 January 2002 to enable the
company to grant options to selected participants as
incentives and rewards for their contribution to the
group. The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a

period of ten years from the date of its adoption.

Under the Scheme, the directors of the company are
authorised, at their discretion, to offer full-time
employees, executives or officers, including the directors
of the company or any of its subsidiaries or any suppliers,
consultants, agents and advisers who will or have
contributed to the group, options to subscribe for such
number of new shares of the company as the board of
directors of the company may determine. Upon
acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay $1.00 to

the company by way of consideration for the grant.

The exercise price of options is the highest of the
nominal value of the shares, the closing price of the
shares on the Stock Exchange on the date of grant and
the average closing price of the shares on the Stock
Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding

the date of grant.

There is no minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised and the options are
exercisable for a period to be notified by the directors to
each option-holder upon the grant of option, such period
not to exceed ten years commencing on the date on
which the option is granted. Each option gives the holder

the right to subscribe for one share.
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22. URAAFXGRZROEBRRS (& 22. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
@@ BREZD (@)  Movements in share options
—g-®5  —BEIAF
2010 2009
HE E4S
Number Number
REA—A At 1 April 5,920,000 5,920,000
FRXRHY Lapsed during the year (20,000) —
R=RA=+—H At 31 March 5,900,000 5,920,000
R=A=+—HEEBZ Options vested at 31 March 5,900,000 5,920,000
fBRE
110
(b) RELBECEEZEREZHZRAR (b) The terms and conditions of the share options that
DT : existed at the year end are as follows:
—E-FF ZEENE
2010 2009
RHAH fTEHE TEE 28 28
Date of grant Exercisable period Exercise price Number Number
—EE-FMACH —EE-EMA=TZ=HE $1.15 5,900,000 5,900,000
—Z--5WmA-H
2 April 2002 23 April 2002 to 1 April 2012
—2T-FNA=A —ZZ-FMA-RHE $1.15 - 20,000
—E2--fWMA-H
2 April 2002 2 April 2003 to 1 April 2012
5,900,000 5,920,000
(c) R-ZZ2E—FE—A+hB BR (c) On 19 January 2010, 20,000 shares of share
—EEBRESEACHMT B options were lapsed due to the resignation of a
20,0000 EREC AR -HE-Z share options holder. No other share options were
—EF-A=t-HILEFELET exercised, granted or lapsed during the year ended
E-BREHEABRETREAME 31 March 2010.
IRAE R -
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22. DLBRAFRNNRZROERR S (& 22. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)
(d) HBERETEERA(EBHBHREED) (d)  The group has not recognised any expenses in
F2HRURODBEF XN 2B respect of these share options, which were all
MRS ARBELEFRFER= granted prior to November 2002, as it took
ZE_F+-ARRHZZEER advantage of the transitional provisions set out in
RERAEMEA - HKFRS 2, Share-based payment.
23. HREEBEEEEBRITZFIEH 23. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(@ HREEEEBERATIZAHHEEEL (@) Current taxation in the consolidated balance sheet
& represents:
TEE
The group
—2-%F e
2010 2009
Fr Fr
$'000 $'000 111

REEBRBFEHEE Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax

for the year 442 83
2 EHREH Provisional Profits Tax paid (231) (17)
211 66

HBEFERE TGN Balance of Profits Tax provision
Bk §:-¢59-23 relating to prior years - 74
BBIRIBIA Taxation outside Hong Kong 6,180 4,054
6,391 4,194

RE&: Representing:

A BRI Tax recoverable 2) -
FEASBiE Tax payable 6,393 4,194
6,391 4,194
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23. WREERBRATZAENR ()

23. INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET (continued)

(b) ERIAELEFRSHEERAE: (b)  Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
REE The group
RAFEEGREEEABRERZ The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
EEFRBHR (EE) SE AR recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and
IPREBEZHUT : the movements during the year are as follows:
RERHE
SRERNE
Depreciation
allowances REER RER
inexcess  EfYE  BERNE  FEEF
of the  Revaluation Future  Unrealised
related of  benefits of profits on B am
depreciation  properties  tax losses inventories  Provisions Total
r r r Tr r Tr
112 §000 §/000 §/000 §/000 §000 §/000
BEFMEHIRE Deferred tax arising from:
RZBENEMA-H At 1 April 2008 (1,835) 20,637 (1,265) (1,560) = 15,977
BEXRDGIA) /MK (Credited)/charged to profit
or loss (376) 5 176 315 - 120
FARRE Credited to reserves = (3,704) = = = (3,704)
RZZEBAF=A=1-H At31 March 2009 (2,211) 16,938 (1,089) (1,245) - 12,393
R-ZEZAEMA-H At 1 April 2009 (2,211) 16,938 (1,089) (1,245) - 12,393
BHEERIMBR/(GIA)  Charged/(credited) to profit
or loss 18 771 409 (230) (1,880) (912)
fREEENR Charged to reserves - 10,429 = = = 10,429
RZZ-2F=A=+-H At31 March 2010 (2,193) 28,138 (680) (1,475) (1,880) 21,910
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23. HREEBEEBRAITZFAEBH (&) 23. INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET (continued)
(b) CHRIBELHEHEEREE: (#) (b)  Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
(continued)
FEE
The group
—B2-FF —ETNF
2010 2009
Fr Fr
$7000 $000
REESEREIZ Net deferred tax asset recognised
EEFTEHEEF5 on the balance sheet (5,258) (3,002)
REESERERZ Net deferred tax liability recognised
REREHEETFHE on the balance sheet 27,168 15,395
21,910 12,393
113
() AERELERSHEE: (c)  Deferred tax assets not recognised:
AEBE KA RAF W ER T 5 &S The group and the company have not recognised
ZERBBEERIABELERERE deferred tax assets in respect of the following
B temporary differences and tax losses:
FEE NN
The group The company
—E-BF —TTNF -T-BF —BEAF
2010 2009 2010 2009
Fr Fr Tr Fr
$7000 $'000 $000 $000
HigEsE Tax losses 95,421 97,720 10,722 9,571

WERBZEL  Depreciation allowances
RIEEATE less than related

depreciation 770 735 - -
96,191 98,455 10,722 9,571
AR EEEAETEELEERE Included in unrecognised tax losses is an amount
EERABSIENGA X of $17,228,000 (2009: $13,568,000) which can
817,228,000 (ZEZ N F : be carried forward up to five years from the year
13,568,0007T) ° 1R 35 38 5 & % 18 in which the loss originated. The remaining
5] - 5 %878,193,0007t (=2 E balance of $78,193,000 (2009: $84,152,000) does
£ : 84,152,0007T) I B[ E o not expire under the current tax legislation.
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24

EX - RERERE

(@)

BEBN 228

24.  CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

FEEGERZEBORFARF
BeHRINGAEZEZHR K
DRARBEBORFAIRFE 2R

BEFBHRT -

Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and
closing balances of each component of the group’s
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Details of the
changes in the company’s individual components
of equity between the beginning and the end of

the year are set out below.

RRF]
The company

R & R A5 E YRR REER BEAE
Share Share  Contributed Retained Total
capital premium surplus profits equity
i Fr i T r
$'000 $000 $000 $000 $'000
R-BENFMA-Rz&R Balance at 1 April 2008 2,821 58,601 61,572 58,193 181,187
ZBENE/BAEZREEHE :  Changes in equity in 2008/09:
EEBREZRE (Hi224(b) (i)  Dividend approved in respect of
the previous year (note 24(b)(ii)) = = - (19,742) (19,742)
ERRF Profit for the year = = = 59,029 59,029
FEEBERZKRE Dividend declared in respect of
(Hit24(b) (i) the current year (note 24(b)(i)) = - - (5,641) (5,641)
R=ZZFAF=A=+-ARK  Balance at 31 March 2009
“ERNEMA-ARER and 1 April 2009 2,821 58,601 61,572 91,839 214,833
R=BBAE/-FE2ZEER : Changes in equity in 2009/10:
EFEBREZIRE (HE224(b) (i)  Dividend approved in respect of
the previous year (note 24(b)(ii)) = = - (5,641) (5,641)
ERRF Profit for the year = = = 58,850 58,850
FEERERZRE Dividend declared in respect of
(Hi2400) (i) the current year (note 24(b)(i)) - - - (5,640) (5,640)
RZZE-ZFFE=F=1—-H#&# Balance at 31 March 2010 2,821 58,601 61,572 139,408 262,402
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24 EBEXR- -#ERRE (E) 24.  CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)
b BE (b)  Dividends
(i) ENEARABEERR ZAF (i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders
ERE of the company attributable to the year

—E-FF —EENE

2010 2009

T Tr

$000 $'000

CERRIRMNTHKRE  Interim dividend declared and

FREBR2L paid of 2 cents per ordinary share
(Z2ZhE: (2009: 2 cents per ordinary share) 5,640 5,641
BREER21L)

REEBREZ DK Final dividend proposed after the
RAPEREBREBER balance sheet date of

101l (ZZZAEF: 10 cents per ordinary share
FREER21L) (2009: 2 cents per ordinary share) 28,203 5,641 115
33,843 11,282
REEBERERD K ZKE The final dividend proposed after the
REXTAEEEHEIRE balance sheet date has not been
f& o recognised as a liability at the balance
sheet date.

(i) ENARAAIEERR2LE— (i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders
HHEFERE  YREAFE of the company attributable to the previous
B2 ROR A financial year, approved and paid during

the year
—E-%F —RENF
2010 2009
T T
$’000 $/000
BAL—BBERE ¥  Final dividend in respect of the previous
RAFEERERIK financial year, approved and paid
HAREBR SR during the year, of 2 cents per share
(Z2ENE: (2009: 7 cents per share) 5,641 19,742
ZR74l)
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24 BEEX BERRE(H) 24.  CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)
(o BE (c)  Share capital
“E-Ef ZEENE
2010 2009
b EE! ¢5 R E Ex
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
T T
$7000 $'000
EE Authorised:
SREMB.01T2EBR  Ordinary shares of $0.01 each 1,000,000,000 10,000  1,000,000,000 10,000
BETRAR Issued and fully paid:
SREMB.01TZEBER  Ordinary shares of $0.01 each 282,030,000 2,821 282,030,000 2,821
116
EEREEAGRERFTKEEIRZ The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to
RE - BEEARREZLERTE receive dividends as declared from time to time
—EREE-EEERHARDF and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings
ZRBEEZERSES - of the company. All ordinary shares rank equally

with regard to the company’s residual assets.

d) REEEREH (d)  Nature and purpose of reserves
(i) V. gripal= (i) Share premium
REFASHESQAE RO In accordance with the Companies Law of
RERUDIKFARQE 2K the Cayman Islands, the share premium
ROMEEERESIKKRER account is distributable to shareholders of
e ARAREDEEIRN the company provided that immediately
IBREERFEEKARD following the date on which the dividend
EEZEE -ROBETT is proposed to be distributed, the company
IBTHRAFNRG 2T X will be in a position to pay off its debts as
fEHE 2K they fall due in the ordinary course of

business. The share premium may also be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus

shares.
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(d) FEMEEREN (&)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)
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AEBITRAZHEZESR °
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24.  CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

Other reserve

The other reserve represents the difference
between the nominal value of the share
capital of the subsidiaries acquired over
the nominal value of the shares of the
company issued in exchange therefore
pursuant to the group reorganisation which

became effective on 25 January 2002.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting

policies set out in note 1(q).

Statutory reserve funds

According to the PRC laws applicable to
wholly-owned foreign investment
enterprises, the PRC subsidiaries of the
company are required to set up two
statutory reserve funds, general reserve fund
and staff general fund. General reserve fund
was set up by appropriating at least 10% of
its annual profit after taxation, as
determined under PRC regulations, until
the balance of the fund equals to 50% of
its registered capital. This fund can be used
to make good losses and to convert into
paid-in capital. Transfer from retained
earnings to staff general fund was made at
the discretion of the board of directors of
the PRC subsidiaries. Starting from 1
January 2006, the transfer is no longer a
statutory obligation upon the revision of the
law on 27 October 2005 and no transfer to

staff general fund was made since.
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24 EBEXR- -RERRE (E)
(d) fREEERBENE)
v) ITHREZYEEHEE
REBORY THREREY
EfhfEE LHEREMLE
15 B8 F £ th [ 22 22 4] BT SR 40
2 &5 BUR(MIEE (D) B 22 ©

i)  HAEER
MABBRERRER-ZZ
“HE-A-t+EBRENRZE
BEAMBBZHBEARE
RzeftERFEERDF
REEBREZERTRSG
ZHEBEZEZHE BABHZ
118 FAZERMDEEMRR -

(e  AHDIRRFEE
R=ZZFE-—=FFE=ZB=+—8 -
ARRFAAGAEERR ZHE
# %8 5259,581,000t (ZEZE R
% :212,012,0007t) - R&EHEH
% EBEZIRRFIRESR
101l (ZZZAF : BR2M) - &
# 528,203,000t (ZEZE N & :
5,641,0007T) - WEER EFT SRR
AREERZEE -
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24.

CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d)

(e)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(v) Land and building revaluation reserve
The land and buildings revaluation reserve
has been set up and will be dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for the revaluation of land and

buildings held for own use (note 1(f)).

(vi)  Contributed surplus
The contributed surplus represents the
difference between the then combined net
asset value of the subsidiaries acquired
over the nominal value of the shares of the
company issued in exchange therefore
pursuant to the group reorganisation which
became effective on 25 January 2002. The
application of contributed surplus is the

same as the share premium.

Distributability of reserves

At 31 March 2010, the aggregate amount of
reserves available for distribution to equity
shareholders of the company was $259,581,000
(2009: $212,012,000). After the balance sheet
date the directors proposed a final dividend of 10
cents per share (2009: 2 cents per share),
amounting to $28,203,000 (2009: $5,641,000).
This dividend has not been recognised as a

liability at the balance sheet date.
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24.  CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

®

Capital management

The group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the
level of risk and by securing access to finance at a

reasonable cost.

The group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a
balance between the higher shareholder returns
that might be possible with higher levels of
borrowings and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of

changes in economic conditions.

Since the group is able to generate satisfactory
returns from internal capital, the group is not

heavily financed by external borrowings.

During 2010, the group’s strategy in monitoring its
capital structure, which was unchanged from
2009, was to maintain a sufficient cash level to
meet its liquidity requirements. In order to
maintain or adjust the cash level, the group may
adjust the amount of dividends payable to
shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to
shareholders or sell assets to increase the cash

level.

Neither the company nor any of its subsidiaries
are subject to externally imposed capital

requirements.

119



120

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% 5 b4k A FR A 7

S 75 A

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

25.

TREREERAAE

FE -RBDES FNEXREBABDIER
SEXBCEEREXBBEDELE A &KH
FAEzZERABRAEBEEZERAR
FrERA B ERREMNELR T -

(@)

FER R

AEEzFERBREEZHEWRERR
REMERRELE EEEBCHE
BREEREX THZEEFEER

BRI EEE o

MEWRRREMERRMS @ &
BHERBHETSHZ2GEZE
FETEET G WETFEEFRR
EFEBERIIBARMNTE U
RIBEARNEED Lt RERE
FREENERFENRSZREFRRE
FTENEKERE ZEERKE R
HERE A#B30ZE90HRNEE - RA
BHREERBE2ERABE BN
EAREERBEEAAIRTE-—SE
E-AEEEHREMZTERBKER
REMBURRZATUE S U
RBRATRESEEEZHZRE
K18 o

RITER-—REGEFRREFNY
FHREFT - Rt EBEEYLTEHY
REVBFHTEBTREZEE

25.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency

risks arises in the normal course of the group’s business.

The group’s exposure to these risks and the financial

management policies and practices used by the group to

manage these risks are described below.

(@)

Credit risk

The group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade and other receivables. Management has a
credit policy in place and the exposures to these

credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, credit
evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of
making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the customer
operates. These receivables are due within 30 to
90 days from the date of billing. Debtors with
long overdue balances are requested to settle all
outstanding balances before any further credit is
granted. The group reviews regularly the
recoverable amount of each individual trade and
other receivable to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable

amounts.

Placement of bank deposits are normally with
counterparties that have sound credit ratings.
Therefore, management does not expect any
investment counterparty to fail to meet its

obligations.
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25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

(continued)

(@)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

At the balance sheet date, 8% (2009: 4%) and
28% (2009: 18%) of the total trade and other
receivables was due from the group’s largest

debtor and the five largest debtors respectively.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in
the balance sheet. The group has not provided any
financial guarantee which would expose the group

or the company to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade

and other receivables are set out in note 18.

Liquidity risk

The group’s policy is to regularly monitor its
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity

requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table show the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the group’s
and the company’s non-derivative financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flow (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on rates current at the balance
sheet date) and the earliest date the group and the

company can be required to pay:
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25. SRIEKBEERDALE(E) 25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
(continued)
by RBESRRE) (b)  Liquidity risk (continued)
r5E
The group
“E-%F “ERNE
2010 2009
HEE i8] HEES$
BERH BeRd
Contractual Contractual
undiscounted undiscounted
cash outflow cash outflow
-ER —£R
ER:% £ERZ HiEE £EAZ
BAKES aE REE BARIH ag REE
Within Balance Within Balance
1 year sheet 1 year sheet
122 or on carrying or on carrying
demand Total amount demand Total amount
r i T e T T
$000 $000 $000 $'000 $/000 $'000
EARZREMEN Trade and other payables 53,197 53,197 53,197 49,507 49,507 49,507
UG
The company
~2-%4 =L 2L
2010 2009
HEE i) AARAR
BERL Remi
Contractual Contractual
undiscounted undiscounted
cash outflow cash outflow
-/ -£R
REE £EAZ NEE £EERAZ
BARIS BE REE BARIH AR REE
Within Balance Within Balance
1 year sheet 1 year sheet
or on carrying or on carrying
demand Total amount demand Total amount
i i i Tr i Tr
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $/000 $'000
ERRZREMEMNT Trade and other payables 2,069 2,069 2,069 1,737 1,737 1,737
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25. 2RIEKREERAAEE) 25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
(continued)
© RNERER (c) Interest rate risk

AEEZFEZRBEIERBAEE The group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from

MEE - its interest-bearing financial assets.

(i) FE 7 (i) Interest rate profile
TRAAEEREEHFE The following table details the interest rate
TRMEEZARERS profile of the group’s interest-bearing

financial assets at the balance sheet date:

ES 3
The group
—2-%2F —ERAE
2010 2009
BRAZE L SES
Effective Effective 123
interest Fr interest Tr
rate $/000 rate $'000
BEEMZECHEE Fixed rate financial assets:
- RITFER — Deposits with banks 0.89% 114,100 0.17% 52,804
(i) HBEZH (i) Sensitivity analysis
NRZE—FEFE=H=+— At 31 March 2010, it is estimated that a
B EstFI=2EEA T general increase/decrease of 100 basis
BR—BEF EHMOUEH points in interest rates, with all other
AEREFELEB2BRT & variables held constant, would decrease/
EBoBRBRERAR RS increase the group’s profit after tax and
= A g 2 B 21 & retained profits by approximately
1,141,000t (ZEEE 1L F : $1,141,000 (2009: $528,000) and
528,000 0) X 1,015,0007T $1,015,000 (2009: $90,000) respectively.

ZEZRF 1 90,0007T) °

MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE



Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% 5 b4k B A FR A 7

S 785 A W

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA ¥ 51 7R ) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

25, TREARMEERQAEGE)

(© RNERR#)
(i) HEEDH (E)
FTABRESMEFAEEZ
BR B 18 058 B B2 4R B8 s A 7 RE
EEZHE2E HBRED
TRENEZEHREEAE
Rt WS AREHTE
REERBRLREZRAE
AEBHEQAENRER
ZERITHE HRAKREH
REEBMBEREZFBHAER
FMETERELEZRER
F=Rmp HAKEZRB
RENRREBEFN 2ZER
124 LEEBENRSHMEELE 2
MNEXHIBAZFERE
Bt - 2D U-FR
hFEZR -—BEEFT -

d EWEAR
FEESR2EYRAREIERAA
HEEEREREE MAXREHN
FTELUNEE (AR ZRSZ M S Lk
MEXEB2DRER) HEZER
MIE - BEYRBARREERMESE ©
SIFMEREBRCERETERXT
BT R 8 e
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25.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

(continued)

()

(d)

Interest rate risk (continued)
(ii)  Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the group’s profit
after tax and retained profits that would
arise assuming that the change in interest
rates had occurred at the balance sheet
date and had been applied to re-measure
those financial instruments held by the
group which expose the group to fair value
interest rate risk at the balance sheet date.
In respect of the exposure to cash flow
interest rate risk arising from floating rate
non derivative instruments held by the
group at the balance sheet date, the impact
on the group’s profit after tax and retained
profits is estimated as an annualised
impact on interest expense or income of
such a change in interest rates. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for
2009.

Currency risk

The group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through sales, purchases, expenses and recharges
amongst group entities which give rise to
receivables, payables and cash balances that are
denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a currency
other than the functional currency of the
operations to which the transactions relate. The
currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily

United States dollars, Euros and Sterling pounds.



25. TEEAREERQAEE)

(d)

MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE

EWRR (&)
RUBTERDEER 2EEER
mE ' BRETERMBMNETRE
S FBHERBEHUBITHE
TETE-HRBTEITHE &
BERMEAGEXRSZETESEN
BEREWER - B AR T REHE
BZXEZME HRZEXRZHIL
TEXR EEERBMAEZEY
B K e

RAARBELRDEEB 2EEHE
EmMS BRAUBRFEZEHE
BEERETREN  HEXZ X
O LAREHE - FE OB TE
BExEEEEEERRSGME &
BEERR/MAREZEBRBTX -

AEEERZERRBREAEEER
H_ZZAFHEE -

Annual Report 2010 4E 44t

S 285 2% Wi

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

(continued)

(d)

Currency risk (continued)

For group entities whose functional currency is
Hong Kong dollars, all sales and purchases are
denominated in either Hong Kong dollars or
United States dollars, except for certain purchases
from Europe. Given that Hong Kong dollar is
pegged to the United States dollar, management
does not expect that there will be any significant
currency risk associated with such United States
dollars denominated transactions. For transactions
denominated in Euros and and Sterling pounds,
since the volume of such transactions is not
significant, management considers the exposure to

currency risk to be low.

For group entities whose functional currency is
Renminbi, except for certain borrowings from
group entities and transactions amongst group
entities that are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, most of other transactions are
denominated in Renminbi. For borrowings and
transactions amongst group entities denominated
in Hong Kong dollars, the management considers

that the exposure to currency risk is low.

The group’s exposure to currency risk and its
policies for managing such risk were unchanged
from 2009.
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25.

TEAREERQAMEE)

(d)

EWER (&)

(i)

PR iE 2 B m B

TREAKEEREFEHLFE
LI ERIEERHEN
ERALENEBEMERZZ
SNERBEHFADIN T
RTEEEEREEHE X
AFHER (ZERERS
AREHHNBLARNFREN
—Em) MELENER T
XNEREDRFERAZER
ABRABEERI A B
B 5 & 8 UMK B 2 B iz Bt
BRE/AFAEENZINEHE
MEENZ=[ML TEFEEA °

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

(continued)
(d) Curren
(i)

cy risk (continued)

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the group’s
significant exposure at the balance sheet
date to currency risk arising from
recognised assets or liabilities denominated
in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate.
The exposure arising from the borrowings
from group entities that in substance form
part of the net investment in subsidiaries is
excluded. For presentation purposes, the
amounts of the exposure are shown in
Hong Kong dollars, translated using the
spot rates ruling at the year end date.
Differences resulting from the translation
of financial statements of subsidiaries
outside Hong Kong into the group’s
presentation currency are excluded.

FEE
The group
AR 2SR R
Exposure to foreign currencies
(RB#3IT)
(expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
—2-%5 —EE0E
2010 2009
B ®E B B8
Sterling Sterling
Euros pounds Euros pounds
T T T T
$000 $000 $000 $000
FE W BR R R E At FE W Trade and other receivables - - 50 -
ERERRHEMELTR Trade and other payables (1,649) (2,687) (912) (1,204)
BREEREEMELZRRAR Net exposure arising from
recognised assets and liabilities (1,649) (2,687) (862) (1,204)

MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE



25.

MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE

TREREERQAMEE)

(d)

Annual Report 2010 4E 44t

S 285 2% Wi

Notes to the Financial Statements

(LA 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

(continued)

B mE b (4F) (d)  Currency risk (continued)

(i)  BBEDH (i) Sensitivity analysis
TRETAEEREZBRK The following table indicates the
AEREABZIEERNE instantaneous change in the group’s profits
AR EHAER B EZEF after tax and retained profits that would
KRB 2HNEZE B arise if foreign exchange rates to which the
1R =% EL At R B 3 B A A T4 group entities have significant exposure at
RUAMS  SBRRBIRE the balance sheet date had changed at that
TTZENBHEERARLSZ date, assuming all other risk variables
ERNAAEMER 2BEEEE remained constant. In this respect, it is
FrscE o assumed that the pegged rate between the

Hong Kong dollar and the United States
dollar would be materially unaffected by
any changes in movement in value of the
United States dollar against other
currencies.
rEE
The group
—E2-%F “EENE
2010 2009
Ex RKHEKEN  REEA Ex RKRHgEN  REEF
/&Y B/ Lt/ GBS/ A/
(F&) #m 2 (T¥) B =il
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease)  (Decrease)/  (Decrease)/  (decrease)  (Decrease)/  (Decrease)/
in foreign increase increase in foreign increase increase
exchange in profits in retained exchange in profits in retained
rates after tax profits rates after tax profits
Fr Fr Tr T
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BT Euros 10% (138) (138) 10% (72) (72)
(10)% 138 138 (10)% 72 72
HiE Sterling pounds 10% (224) (224) 10% (101) (101)
(10)% 224 224 (10)% 101 101
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25.

TRAREERQAMEE)

(d)

(e)

EWRR (&)

(ir)

D RE

BRE 5 HT ()
ERAZF 2D MERER
SEXEERUERNDEE
BB (RE2HEM B
HERCEXRRBRAET)
ZBRBE KT E -

BREIMEBRIINEER
ZEBEARENTELRE
EREFEAEREERFELE
BHENERB 2SR T
B BREEEBNALEERER
FEHT MG BIEEMLN
AR BWARE - Ik i
BEBEBUIIKNE LR Z
MBERRBREREFIEEZZ
NEMREE 2=/ 2 &
DRRE_ZZAFHEREZ
EAEET o

FEZRIAYREAER-Z-F%
FR-ZBZEAF=ZA=+—-HZA
RETEEEARZEZHEIE-
MBARZAESRASEER 28R
BEEERDY BERZEMHRA K
BERECAABLERSSE -

25.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES

(continued)

(d)

(e)

Currency risk (continued)

(ii)  Sensitivity analysis (continued)
Results of the analysis as presented in the
above table represent an aggregation of the
instantaneous effects on each of the group
entities’ profit or loss measured in the
respective functional currencies, translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rate ruling at the balance sheet date for

presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the
change in foreign exchange rates had been
applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the group which
expose the group to currency risk at the
balance sheet date, including inter-
company payables and receivables within
the group which are denominated in a
currency other than the functional
currency of the lender or the borrower. The
analysis excludes differences that would
result from the translation of the financial
statements of subsidiaries outside Hong
Kong into the group’s presentation
currency. The analysis is performed on the

same basis for 2009.

Fair values

All financial instruments are carried at amounts
not materially different from their fair values as at
31 March 2010 and 2009. Balances with
subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and have
no fixed repayment terms. Given these terms, it is

not meaningful to disclose their fair values.

MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE
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26. EiE 26. COMMITMENTS
(@ REZE-—ZF=ZA=Z+-—-HLER (@)  Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March
M RREHBEZERBTER 2010 not provided for in the financial statements
AEWMT were as follows:
TEE
The group
—E-%F -
2010 2009
Fr Fr
$’000 $000
2514 Contracted for 9,489 687
(b) R-ZEBE-—ZFF=ZA=+—H HR#E (b) At 31 March 2010, the total future minimum lease
TARRREHEERRENZR payments under non-cancellable operating leases
RESFRELHAOT : are payable as follows: 129
rEH
The group
—E-BF —EZhE
2010 2009
Fr Fr
$’000 $000
—FR Within 1 year 99,172 105,762
—FREAFR After 1 year but within 5 years 104,274 95,925
203,446 201,687

rEBERKEHERARETWE-
ZERN-—RAOTAEHP-—ZRF
WA RAREEHRBRETBRARE
W-HENREEERBEFRAE
IR RS E

The group leases a number of properties under
operating leases. These leases typically run for an
initial period of one to five years, with an option
to renew the leases when all terms are
renegotiated. Lease payments are usually adjusted
annually to reflect market rentals.

REXHWBEZHRERENKIN X
SEAREXERE THEWER
H—EBIHERBEENREZE

o for certain leased properties.

MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE

In addition to the minimum lease payments
disclosed above, the group has commitments to
make rental payments at a percentage of turnover
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27

RERE

(@)

RZZE-ZF=ZA=+t—-H &2
ARET2EMBLARZRITHE
REQXFER -

FHiR TR E N A67,690,0007T
(ZZ=ZNF :67,690,0007T) *
R-ZE-—ZHE=ZA=+-—-H" 8
F#6,774,000C (ZZ T h F :
6,434,0007T) 2 & H

BE-Z-ZEZF=-A=1t—H1
FEHB XARTH—BHER
B—RE2EWELQARMEERER
BeBNEESIRERNZHEESD
BHE—RF - R=_Z—FF=H
=+—H8 ' BEEEAH2687,0005T
(ZZEZ N :1,204,0007T) ©

ARBUEERHZERER 2%
REWFBEARFRUNEBER i
BARRAEBER T RAKARE
RE(EBEER) B3R /24
TH: BRARTE HBEERSH]
ARG EZERG 2D RE - Bt
FHERLEIFEMEBERUD
REFE-

27.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)

At 31 March 2010, certain wholly-owned
subsidiaries’ banking facilities were secured by

corporate guarantees provided by the company.

The above banking facilities, amounting to
approximately $67,690,000 (2009: $67,690,000)
were utilised to the extent of approximately
$6,774,000 (2009: $6,434,000) at 31 March
2010.

During the year ended 31 March 2010, the
company has also issued a single guarantee to a
supplier against obligations or sums payable for
goods and services supplied to a wholly owned
subsidiary. At 31 March 2010, such obligations
amounted to $2,687,000 (2009: $1,204,000).

These guarantees were issued by the company at
nil consideration. The transactions were not at
arm’s length, and it is not possible to measure
reliably the fair value of these transactions in
accordance with HKAS 39, Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement: Financial
guarantee contracts, had they been at arm’s
length. Accordingly the guarantees have not been
accounted for as financial liabilities and measured

at fair value.

MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE
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28. EXBEBALIXRS 28. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
BRZEPHERREAMBLTAEEZRIR In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
RN AEBEFTYTIERBEBALZ elsewhere in these financial statements, the group
x5 entered into the following material related party

transactions:

(@ EREARZXS (@  Transactions with related companies
—E-FF —EENF
2010 2009
Fr Tr
$’000 $'000
REMEZHEWA Rental income from investment property 429 420
EEFEECHERX Rental expense for director’s quarters 930 600
HEBART L Z2HERARRBX Rental income and expenses with related
DRANFHERZ ZHRREE ° companies were at terms mutually agreed by both 131
R-ZB-—EZF=ZA=+—-HR=Z parties. There were no outstanding balances with
ZENFE=ZRA=Z+—B LEEAFK related companies as at 31 March 2010 and 31
RRABHEZKREBREE - March 2009.
by ZEEEBAEMS (b)  Key management personnel remuneration
TEEBASHE (BEME7RIK Remuneration for key management personnel,
BXNTARADHTES KM including amounts paid to the company’s
BREXNTETERSHESE 2HH) executive directors as disclosed in note 7 and
W certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed

in note 8, is as follows:

—E-EF —ETNEF

2010 2009

T T

$’000 $000

EHESER Short-term employee benefits 13,397 12,928
BBz ESER Post-employment benefits 60 60
13,457 12,988

MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE
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29. LEBEF 29,

RMWBERBEFENFIR (CEZLFELE
A BHEEZ 22 IR E BB ®REER
B/ ALK BETHBREFECH
B OUFEEAFEZR2SAR  IHR=
Z-ZHEERREBECRERHALERSHE -
ZEBS 2 H BRI E -

30, BAGARBAERALT 30.

RZE-ZE=ZF=+—-—H BEEFIA
AEBzE AR RKAZER AL BSuper
Result Consultants Limited @ —ZR A 5 B 4
BAREEAMRI AT ZARtER
SN BB 2 BF RS 3R K o

31. SR HAERMEE 31.

MizE13(c) 13 R25HEEEYER SR
TEMREZBREEERBEZ2ER -
Hibfhst THEBEREZ2EERFENT ¢

@ BEE&EEZRE
FEESFHEREABNS TR
RAEEEEERORENR - i
HREBYR EEZANREEHE
“2EZERAPEERAABERHEE
BAET - EREERARSRRE
BEEBI HRARRERERD
REHEEXNANGEEREER
EFBENER  EENMET TR
DEHEASFFREERTRE =
BomafRBRNEIMENE
BEERSE -

by EBEIZEWRRZREE

RE(EBERER) HB365 /K E
wE ] A HRERERE S ER
R EEARELIRER  E&
ARESIETERE] - MBEEE A
BEWER BESRWERRZEES
EHER UFGTRDSERES
EREERNIREE - B S BRIRN
ZABEEBENGETARESRE
RENEEZRTHHSEHRRFTR
AE-AEEANAREREZEN
HAWCSHFESEZME -

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

As a result of the application of HKAS 1 (revised 2007),
Presentation of financial statements, and HKFRS 8,
Operating segments, certain comparative figures have
been adjusted to conform to the current year’s
presentation and to provide comparative amounts in
respect of items disclosed for the first time in 2010.
Further details of these developments are disclosed in
note 2.

PARENT AND ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

At 31 March 2010, the directors consider the parent and
ultimate controlling party of the group to be Super Result
Consultants Limited, which is incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands. This entity does not produce financial
statements available for public use.

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

Notes 13(c), 13(d) and 25 contains information about the
assumptions and their risk factors relating to valuation of
properties and financial instruments. Other key sources
of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(a) Impairment of fixed assets
The group assesses annually whether fixed assets
have any indication of impairment in accordance
with the relevant accounting policies. If such
indication exists, the recoverable amounts of the
assets would be determined by reference to value
in use and fair value less cost to sell. Value in use
is determined using the discounted cash flow
method. Due to inherent risk associated with
estimations in the timing and magnitude of the
future cash flows and fair value less cost to sell,
the estimated recoverable amount of the assets
may be different from its actual recoverable
amount and profit or loss could be affected by the
accuracy of the estimations.

(b) Impairment of trade debtors

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of trade debtors may not be recoverable, the assets
may be considered “impaired” and an impairment
loss may be recognised in accordance with HKAS
36, Impairment of assets. The carrying amounts of
trade debtors are reviewed periodically in order to
assess whether the recoverable amounts have
declined below the carrying amounts. The
recoverable amount of trade debtors is the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return of similar assets. The
group uses all available information in
determining an amount that is a reasonable
approximation of recoverable amount.

MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE
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FEBERSEREFEIM B
AHEBZREEBHEENER
ZHREE RELEHN HEFE
ZEREEREEMEFT TR FE
AlEMEFE -ARTESBETEH
BE BRZHEERA R MGG
ERER KA 2EBUETESR
285 o

EEBIHEE
EEBBEEDRARBA ZHIEES
BREBNRERER -HRNZSE
FEEREEENEDERRAKRE
RBLE A T AR SR E A A
BANBERS  EEEAMNMEKR
RERBEN 2 TREM - EEEY
HEF G HEREFR - i RRE
Rt A A ST R U R E B TR B E
AlEmREIMNELERIREE -

B - BN R A

BEMGH BEHRBHBER
BRAE BEAEBREESETX
ZEBBREMRPIN2RENERS
AEEEFAFIERZNBHBERA
hERRTEHEREE HEH
RENEESEHNEECERERE
ZE BEUBREGKAMNZE
MEH HZEXRENEERERE
RERADSHENEE - B E8HE
EYEFHEREENFENRE -
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31. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

()

(d

(e)

Write down of inventories

The group performs regular review of the carrying
amounts of inventories with reference to aged
inventories analysis, historical consumption trends
and management judgement. Based on this
review, write down of inventories will be made
when the carrying amounts of inventories decline
below their estimated net realisable value. Due to
changes in market trends, actual consumption
may be different from estimation and profit or loss
could be affected by accuracy of this estimation.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses
not yet used and temporary deductible
differences. As those deferred tax assets can only
be recognised to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against
which the unused tax credits can be utilised,
management’s judgement is required to assess the
probability of future taxable profits. Management’s
assessment is constantly reviewed and additional
deferred tax assets are recognised if it becomes
probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Taxation, indirect taxes and duties

Determining the provision for income tax, indirect
taxes and duties involves judgement, including the
interpretation and application of tax and other
legislation, on the future treatment of certain
transactions. The group carefully evaluates the tax
and other implications of transactions and,
provisions are set up accordingly. The treatment of
such transactions is reconsidered periodically to
take into account all changes in, including
interpretation of, tax and other legislation. Where
the final outcome of these transactions is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact provisions in the year
in which such determination is made.
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32. BE-ZE—EZEF=A=+—-HLEE 32.  POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
SEMGENRE R ZIEET - HEER STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
kB E NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH

2010
BEEZEZEUMBH/RRTEAEH  EESM Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
NECHEMS BB FIBEARZE HKICPA has issued the following amendments, new
ZEBR] B EARREBEREBEZE-Z standards and Interpretations which are not yet effective
EFE=ZA=+—HIEFEDPREN > B for the year ended 31 March 2010 and which have not
REZEMERRTMN © been adopted in these financial statements.
RT5 B8
B2 EERZ
SHBER

Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after

134
BB BREENEI (RIERT [FES06 —EFhFLA—H
HKFRS 3 (Revised), Business combinations 1 July 2009
RS ERE27R 2R FE RE LA HH “EZNEFLA—H
Amendments to HKAS 27, Consolidated and separate

financial statements 1 July 2009
EREEREIR BRI TA  BRERTE-SEKHFEE ] —EZNFLA—H
Amendments to HKAS 39, Financial instruments:

Recognition and measurement — Eligible hedged items 1 July 2009
B8 (ERMBRERBEES) R/ OEBASEHELEE] —ZEEAFEtHA—H
HK(IFRIC) 17, Distributions of non-cash assets to owners 1 July 2009
BEBUBREEN (ZZZNF) 2EFT —EEANFLtA-B=ZF-ZHF—-HA—H
Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 1 July 2009 or 1 January 2010
AEBRENEERZEEITRERER The group is in the process of making an assessment of
HEeTE -HEAAL AEERE what the impact of these amendments is expected to be
BMZEEITETRAEHARAT & E in the period of initial application. So far it has
FERDIBRRERERZE - concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a

significant impact on the company’s results of operations

and financial position.

MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE MOISELLE



45 ] 1 25 W

Group Financial Summary

(LA 51 7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

LUTARBTIMEFHEEERR 2 AEBEE The following is a summary of the published results and assets
“E-ZHE-FA=1+-BHLABAFERFCE I and liabilities of the group for each of the five years ended 31
KEREERABGEZHE - March 2010 prepared on the basis as set out in the notes below.
£ Results

HE=A=1T-HLFE
Year ended 31 March
ZE-ZF ZEEhNE ZZZIN\FE ZETtHE ZETXRE

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Fr Fr T Fr Fr
$000 $’000 $/000 $/000 $/000
= 2 Turnover 439,599 423,088 415,464 352,217 311,617
mE R T Profit from operations 58,006 27,902 57,959 85,459 75,714
135
L& B AR Finance costs (3) (141) (266) (365) (251)
3N Share of losses of jointly
ZEE controlled entity (90) - - - _
T REEY R Net valuation gains/(losses)
REWHE 2 hE on land and buildings
W, (E518) FE and investment properties 5,349 (381) 4,649 2,975 9,972
R B4 A% A Profit before taxation 63,262 27,380 62,342 88,069 85,435
Frig Income tax (9,593) (7,323) (10,043) (9,815) (6,624)
FREF Profit for the year 53,669 20,057 52,299 78,254 78,811
BREF Earnings per share
A& Basic $0.19 $0.07 $0.19 $0.28 $0.28
i Diluted $0.19 $0.07 $0.18 $0.27 $0.28
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EERER Assets and liabilities

=A=+—H
As at 31 March
—%-%F —TTAE -FEN\E -BTLE -TIAA

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
(B&E5)"
(restated)"”
Fr Fr Fo S o
$000 $'000 $/000 $000 $/000
EE&E Fixed assets 267,972 214,856 246,931 182,464 135,644
HihEE Other assets 13,255 14,226 20,519 13,558 12,118
ELEREBHEE Deferred tax assets 5,258 3,002 3,227 4,112 4,617
136
REBEERE Net current assets 215,629 167,265 157,609 159,387 154,273
BEERRE Total assets less
EEH8E current liabilities 502,114 399,349 428,286 359,521 306,652
FRBEME Non-current liabilities (27,168) (15,395) (19,204) (7,967) (5,946)
474,946 383,954 409,082 351,554 300,706
&N Share capital 2,821 2,821 2,821 2,821 2,820
i Reserves 472,125 381,133 406,261 348,733 297,886
474,946 383,954 409,082 351,554 300,706
BiaE - Note:
(1 ERIERBEEFEZI-"ZTZEAF=A (1) Deposits of $12,118,000 as at 31 March 2006 previously included
=+ —H:iT£12,118000ct B EF D EH H A in net current assets have been re-classified as other assets.
BE-
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